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Corporate Profile

Green Build Technology Limited (“Green Build” or “the Company”) was founded on 6 February 2004.
Its stock trading code on the Singapore Exchange is Y06. Currently, its subsidiaries in China include
Harbin Shengming Energy Saving and Technology Co., Ltd., Harbin Utility Tunnel Construction and
Management Co., Ltd., Harbin Prevailing Municipal Engineering Co., Ltd. and Harbin Superior
Construction Materials Trading Co., Ltd . In 2015, the Company disposed of its packaging business to
focus on managing projects relating to urban infrastructure construction, comprehensive refurbishment
of old estates, and the investment, management and operation of energy-saving and environmental
projects.

The Company is the only corporate participant in the committee to formulate the National Green Mark
Standard for Evaluation of Upgrading of Existing Buildings. It completed the Three-Ditch Bankside
Green Lighting Project, a demonstration project showcasing the installation of LED street lamps at
Hejiagou and Majiagou to reduce energy consumption. It is also the appointed enterprise to complete
an estate upgrading demonstration project involving green technology under the China's Twelfth
Five-Year Plan theme of "Green Development”. In 2015, the Company continued to be successful in
its bid for general energy-saving building projects in Harbin and was also successful in its bid to
construct one of the first utility tunnels in China, thus becoming a pioneer in this industry.

The Company has the most qualified and competent R&D team in the industry in energy-saving
technology. It gathers a legion of industry experts and researchers, working together with the leading
R&D units of China Academy of Building Research, Shanghai Research Institute of Building Sciences,
Shenzhen Institute of Building Sciences and Harbin Institute of technology to conduct extensive
research into green redevelopment of building and has obtained relevant patents in this field.

Through years of effort, the Company is now well-recognized and well-regarded by the industry. The
Company was invited to participate in the third, fourth and fifth sessions of the "Heilongjiang Provincial
People's Congress”, presented in the Prevention of Air Pollution seminar in Heilongjiang Province as
keynote speaker, organized the “create low-carbon city, build Green Harbin" seminar at the Harbin
International Cold Zone Expo. The Company was also the only keynote speaker from Harbin at the
Eleventh International Conference of Green Development and Energy Saving to speak on “Countering
Smog — Promoting green redevelopment on existing building”. The Company also participated in the
Heilongjiang Province (Hong Kong) economic and trade cooperation activities 2015. It also organized
the “New Norm, New Opportunities, New Model — PPP and Heilongjiang Economic Development”
seminar, which is the first PPP seminar in Heilongjiang.

Currently, China is actively promoting the Public-Private-Partnership (“PPP") model. As the first PPP
model practitioner in Harbin Heilongjiang, the Company is at the forefront of the industry. In 2015, the
general energy-saving building projects and the utility tunnel projects in Harbin adopted the PPP
model. This successful implementation of the PPP model bodes well for the economic restructuring
and infrastructure construction in Heilongjiang.

2016 is the first year of China's Thirteenth Five-Year Plan. In this starting year, the Company will
spend every effort in the utility tunnel project to complete this benchmark project in China's first utility
tunnel construction. The Company is also committed to complete the general energy-saving building
projects, improve the living environment of residents and uplift the urban environs. It will also support
the use of PPP model in the infrastructure construction projects as a means in promoting Harbin's
economy growth, and proactively expand our business and presence to reach another peak in the
urban infrastructure construction realm.
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Chairman’s Statement
Dear stakeholders,

2015 is a year of progress for Green Build Technology
Limited ("Green Build" or “the Group”), a year we fought hard,
and a year we can be proud of. With the support from our
Board of Directors and our shareholders at large, the Group
executed its strategic growth plans through our staff's
steadfast diligence, and reached peaks after peaks, attained
successes after successes, to become the industry leader in
the PRC in the comprehensive refurbishment of existing
estate and urban infrastructure construction.

Over the past two decades, the PRC Government has been
robustly promoting the energy conservation and
environmental protection industry, and introducing the
relevant policies to promote the comprehensive
refurbishment of existing estates. Green Build addresses the
demands and needs of the time, matches up the
Government's  strategic  blueprint, continues to be
enterprising, strives to be efficient and plans for the long-term
development in this closing year of the China's Twelfth
Five-Year Plan. In upholding our Corporate Vision of
“Improving the environment, promoting societal development
to become a leading enterprise”, adhering to our Corporate
Mission of “Providing green, low-carbon, energy saving
solutions and services to society through state-of-the-art
green technology”, the Company worked in unison diligently
to become the appointed enterprise for general
energy-saving building projects in Harbin and to successfully
clinched a contract to build a utility tunnel in Harbin, which is
one of 10 selected cities for the PRC's first demonstration
utility tunnel projects.

With the greater governmental emphasis on ecological
progress and environmental protection, green development
has become an important concept in leading global
development. The Thirteenth Five-Year Plan is expected to
bring bigger, faster and better development to the
environmental protection industry. It will be an era to build a
moderate prosperous society, and is a crucial phase in
achieving the first centurial goal. The environmental
protection industry is now in a strategic phase of abundant
opportunities, which brings to Green Build more opportunities
and greater challenges.

Passion and sweat created the achievements of our past;
sensibility and perseverance forge our future. 2016 will be
another crucial year in our development and progress. |
firmly believe that if we unite as one, put our efforts together
to take advantage of the government's support in urban
infrastructure building and refurbishment of existing estates,
and strive relentlessly with the support from all staff and
stakeholders, we can expand our boundaries and markets,
and achieve greater success.

Zhao Lizhi
Chairman of the Board of Directors
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Mr Zhao Lizhi is re-designated as Executive Chairman and Director on 1 March 2015 Mr.
Zhao is a senior energy management professional and building energy-saving expert, and he
is also a well-known entrepreneur in the energy-saving industry with more than 20 years of
corporate management and project management experience. He has scores of invenfion
patents under his name, which are related to energy-saving and insulation doors, windows
and materials. Mr Zhao is aiso an adjunct lecturer with several universities in Harbin city.
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Ms Wu Xueying is our Chief Executive Officer was appointed as an Executive Director of our Company on 11 March 2014 pursuant to the
Group restructuring to diversify into new business lines of the provision of energy conservation services and sustainable development
projects. Ms Wu is a certified senior energy manager, 8 member of Heilongjiang Technology Economy Expert Advisory Committee, a
member of the National Management Talent Vocational Qualification Review Committee and is one of ten major philanthropists in
Heilongjiang Province, She is also an adjunct lecturer with the MBA Education Centre of Harbin Commerce University. She specialises in
managemeant consulting and corporate strategic planning. Since the beginning of har career, she has accumulated extensive experience
in business management through participating in corporate strategic planning and corporate culture consulting work., In September 2005,
Ms Wu published her first book entitied § LA ——&{E R TaIhMEMH) | which discusses and summarises her views on corporate staff
training. The book was awarded the outstanding research third-class award by the Heilongjiang Provincial Academy of Social Sciences
and was incorporated to the "China Management Yearbook” in 2008. Besides, She also published {"= /45 T8 M BE 49 3R 5148 & ™)
and (MARFBEEMMESTVELSERIEFARE) in the renowned journal {25} and EFIFHETR) respectively, which caused
widespread concern in China.

She became involved in the energy conservation management industry in 2010, which is a relatively young industry in the PRC. She took
up a management position in Heilongjiang Weicheng Building Energy Conservation Technology Development Co., Ltd, which enabled her
to participate in an energy conservation project in collaboration with the Harbin government, pursuant to which she gained practical
Eexperience in managing numerous aspects of projects of such nature. Ms \Wu spoke passicnately about green topics such as building
energy conservation and alleviating the haze situations in China in various medias and seminars and her unique points of views won
praises and accolades from both industry experts and political leaders alike. Ms Wu graduated from the Harbin University of Commaerce in
2004,

8 SREEN BUILE TECHNOLOGY | ANNUAL REPOR

heng T

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FHE
SR REN TS

LEMITHE, SET016EIAIA, LAMEERON, HRERARENZRIE. F
EHERARABLEHRARGHENLELEREW. FREMGRELBREAFHONZLRE
AR

Mr Henry Li Mingyang was appointed as an Executive Director of our Company on 1 March 20186,
He is in charge of the business development of the green technology segment. Mr Li has more than
ten years of experience on the business development in Harbin Tianen Industrial Co., Ltd. Mr Li
graduated from the Leilongjiang Radio and TV University with a bachelor degree of Criminal Law.
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Mr Kuan Cheng Tuck was appointed as an Independent Director of our Company on 10 June 2014,
He Is the Chairman of the Audit Committee, Nominating Committee and Remuneration
Committee Mr Kuan has more than 20 years of expenence in the fields of accounting, auditing as
well as business and financial advisory, He currently manages his own accounting and financial
consuiting practices, He is also an independent director of several SGX and HKEx listed
companies, He holds a Bachelor of Accountancy degree from the Nanyang Technological
University of Singapore and is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants (ACCA), United Kingdom as well as a member of the Institute of Singapore Chartered
Accountants (ISCA).  In addition to his accounting qualifications, he also hoids a Master of Laws
(Corporate and Financial Services Law) degree from the National University of Singapore, a
Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of London and Is an associate member of the
Singapore Association of Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.
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Dr Yao Fengge was appointed as an Independent Director of our Company on 10 June 2014, He
is a member of the Audit Committee, Nominating Committee and Remuneration Committee, He
graduated in 1991 from the Heilongjiang College of Computer Science, obtained an MBA in
Economics in 1999 and sub y abtained a Ph.D in M 1tin 2003. Dr Yao is currently
working as the Dean at the Harbin University of Commerce, Institute of Economic Research. He
is well-versed in the theory of capital market and operations, strategic management and
marketing. He is also an independent director of a listed company in China.
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Mr Li Zhao Kun is our Financial Controller. Mr Li is responsible for overseeing our Group's
accounting and finance matters. Mr Li has more than 10 years of experience in the fields of
accounting and auditing in KPMG Singapore and RSM Chio Lim LLP. During his tenure in RSM
Chio Lim LLP, Mr Li was responsible for amongst others, performing operational and financial
audits of public listed companies and multinational corporations in different industries, and
developing and implementing plans to enhance efficiency and effectiveness of business and
financial process. Mr Li left his position as an audit manager of RSM Chio Lim LLP in July 2015,
Mr Li graduated from Oxford Brookes University with a bachelor degree in Accountancy with
honours. Mr Li is currently a member of the Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants and a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA), United Kingdom.
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Ms Wang Hong is the deputy general manager of our Green Technology Division in charge of the
administration, public relations and business development department. Prior to jeining our Group
in'2014, she served as a reporter with Harbin Television Station for more than 5 years, during which
she conducted independent interviews and editing to produce more than 1,000 news clips,
participated in large-scale live shows and interviewed a number of provincial and municipal
leaders. Ms Wang has got strong writing skills and good communication skills. She possesses vast
media experience and was granted the honourable title of "Top Ten Livellhood Reporters”
previously. With practical experi in admini i gement and event planning, she was
tasked to be the editor for several TV and live recording programs. At the same time, she is also
familiar with the various new media, and has unique insights and experiences in microblogging and
Wechat popularization, and played a very positive role in the all-round digital publicity of
enterprises, media promotion and mass communication. Ms Wang graduated with a bachelor
degree in design from the Southwest University for Nationalities in China.
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Mr Jiang Xikun is the general manager of our Green Technology Division. He has more than 30
years' experience in project supervision relating to real estate development and property
management. From 1985 to 2004, he held management positions in real estate development
companies that allowed him to participate in numerous upgrading and construction projects such as
the upgrading of dilapidated houses in an area of 150,000 square meters in Daoll district, Harbin city
and an area of 125,000 square meters in Daowai district, Harbin city, as well as the development of
an area of 160,000 square meters in Daoli district, Harbin city. He took on management positions in
the Harbin Daowai New District Heating Company and Harbin Xiangfang BMS (M/RE S5 EL)
from 2005 to 2013, during which he managed the heating provided to 55,000 Harbin residents over
an area of 4.5 milllon square meters.
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Mr Sun Honglei is the deputy general manager of our Green Technology Division in charge of the
technical department, He specialises in urban landscape design and architecture and has had vast
experience participating in important upgrading and construction projects such as the construction
of the Harbin Nangang district government's office, the upgrading of the housing estate of China
Telecom's employees as well as the renovation of the office building of the Anda District Local
Bureau of Finance, In 2007 to 2012, he was the vice president of Heilongjiang Zhongmei Building
Design Research Institute Limited Co, (#41 o2 @ 5118 11 W32l 48 2 ££47)) and was the chief
designer in numerous major projects camed out by the Harbin government and also participated as
design consultant for numerous other projects in China, While working on these projects, he
researched on energy saving solutions relating to the upgrading of existing buildings and
accumulated valuable knowledge on the same and therefore has strong theoretical foundation and
practical experience In such fields as bullding decoration, energy-saving renovation and upgrading
design. Mr Sun has also participated in the preparation of the National Standard for Green
Evaluation of Energy-Saving Upgrading of Existing Buildings as private enterprise representative
and the preparation of the Guidance on Implementation of the Standard for Green Evaluation of
Energy-Saving Upgrading of Existing Buildings.
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Mr Yang Xiaoyu is the deputy general manager of our Green Technology Division in charge of the
projects department. He has more than 20 years of experience in project management relating to
upgrading and development of properties, having been involved in projects such as the development
of the sports centre of Harbin Mormal University, the construction of the Songbei District Qiulin
Chenxia housing estate, the construction of the China People's Bank {Harbin Central Branch)
Yinxing housing estate and the Harbin Bincai fown project. In recent years, Mr Yang Xiacyu has
been Involved In the management and supervision of energy conservation projects.
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Sustainability and Corporate Social Responsibility are in
the DNA of Green Build. They are the foundation of our
corporate philosophy. Our Corporate Vision, Mission and
Values centre on being green, sustainable and responsible
to the society and community. We set our Vison as:
"Eliminate Pollution, Recreate Resources" We are
steadfast in our Mission "to save energy and reduce
emission through leading technologies so as to create a
bright and green future”. And we conduct according to our
values to “Volunteer for envirenmental change; Promote
harmonious social development™.

Commitment to Shareholders

Investor Relations (IR)

As a public-listed company, we abide by the compliance
rules in providing transparent, relevant and up-to-date
information to our shareholders and the investing
community. We make this information available our IR
section of our corporate website, which contains information
such as our financial information, latest announcements,
press releases and corporate materials. We also provide
the contact number and email address to our Singapore
office.

Our Board of Directors and Management Team are present
at our Annual General Meeting and Extraordinary General
Meetings to clarify any queries on the resolutions of the
meetings as well as to interact with the shareholders to
communicate our business directions and strategies.

In engaging with the investment community, our Chairman
and CEO are present during meetings with analysts and
institutional investors. In October 2015, we organized a
visit for analysts, funds and financial media to visit our
projects in Harbin, China. Through the reports and articles
that they published after the visit,the investment community
in Singapore can better understand our business, the
nature and progress of our projects and our growth
strategies,

corporate Ssocial Responsibilit
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Commitment to Employees

As a project manager of big infrastructure projects, we have to
regard our employees as important resources that enable us to
set ourselves apart from the competition. It is our employees
and siaff that execute, monitor and supervise the projects;
hence we see it a necessity to upgrade their knowledge,
competency and proficiency so that they can achieve to their
fullest potential,

At the beginning of 2016, we organized a management retreat
to Sanya, Hainan. During the retreat, the top management
shared the Group's strategic directions to the various
departments. and conducted team building activities to create
better synergy among the departments, galvanizing the
employees and staff to work toward a commeon goal.

To further motivate employees and cultivate loyalty to the
company. we have in place private share placement scheme
for dedicated and deserving employees. Employees who are
committed and have contributed to the Group's success are
invited to be part of this scheme.

Health & Safety

In conducting the construction work of our projects, we expect
our subcontractors to adhere to strict safety protocols and
ensure acceptable workplace health and safety. All necessary
safety orientations and training are conducted at the worksites.
We aim for zero accident at the worksites and is pleased to

report that there were no accidents on our project sites in 2015.

Training

The company believes that training is the best welfare for
staff. It benefit the staff most by helping them to achieve
their potential.

We ftrain our staff internally as well as send them for
external courses to upgrade their knowledge, skills and
proficiency. Internally,we engage our employees holistically
by charting their career progression paths through
leadership training programmes.

Apart from training to upgrade knowledge, we also frain
staff to understand corporate govemance and good
practices of a public-listed company. The Group Financial
Controller conducted training on SGX listing rules, while
Crowe Horwarth conducted training for internal control.

Welfare

Our employees are important resources and the company
need to take care of them to boost their morale and loyalty
to the company, and to foster closer working relationships
with one another. The company organized its annual staff
appreciation event in February 2015. Besides staff, close
business partners and associates were also invited to join
in the appreciation event.

The company also organized its Company Sporis Day in
May 2015 to promote healthy lifestyle. Themed “Love
Sports, Enjoy Life", staff and employees of all ages are
divided into teams to participate in games to inculcate
active living and foster team spirit.

Commitment to Customers

Our main customer is the provincial government, from
which we get the Public Private Partnership (PPP)
infrastructure projects. Nothing is more pertinent than to
ensure that projects progress on schedule and are
executed to specifications.

Our other customers are the residents of the estates which
we upgraded. Our building insulation projects or other
infrastructure projects bring benefits to the residents.

We view our work as very meaningful to the society and
community. We strive to minimize inconvenience to the
residents during construction as much as possible. We are
heartened to receive commendations and praises from
residents of our completed projects. Such commendations
from residents further boost our morale in ensuring we
complete our work properly so that the residents can have
peace of mind.

Our commitment to do well in our projects are known in the
industry. We are the only enterprise that was selected to
take up and complete the model project in external
insulation and energy saving for existing estate. The
successful refurbishment of Hebai estate in its external
insulation and central heating system is now the model for
such estate revamp and refurbishment.

Commitment to Community

Our work itself is for the community, as spelt in our
Corporate Vison, Mission and Values. Apart from bringing
benefits to the community through our estate upgrading
projects, we also participate in community and charity
activities. One such activity is the Tree Planting Campaign
at Xinglin Village ( # # 1), Songbei district (k2 1L[X) in April
2015. The company staff helped to plant more than one
hundred Poplar trees in this event.




FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

1.Statement of Comprehensive Income

Continuing operations:
Revenue

Cost of sales
Gross profit
Other operating income

Administrative expenses

Profit from continuing operations

Interest expense on interest-bearing
loans

Bank charges

Profit before tax from continuing
operations

Income tax expense

Profit for the year from continuing
operations, net of tax
Discontinued operation:

Profit for the year from discontinued
operations, net of tax

Profit for the year

Profiti{loss) after tax for the year
attributable to:
Owners of the Company

Profit from continuing operations,
net of tax
(Loss)/Profit from discontinued

operations, net of tax

Non-controlling interest
Profit from discontinued
operations, net of tax

Profit for the year

Group

FY2015 FY2014 Increase/

(Restated) (Decrease)
RMB'000 RMB'000 %

90,828 30,549 197.3%
(69,660) (23,659) 194.4%
21,168 6,890 207.2%
762 26,068 (97.1%)
(10,524) (6,986) 50.6%
11,408 25972 (56.1%)
(5,740) ) 819.0%
(6) (1 500.0%
5,660 25,964 (78.2%)
(3,544) (7,421) (52.2%)
2,116 18,543 (88.6%)
2,403 9,856 (75.6%)
4,519 28,399 (84.1%)
2,118 18,543 (88.6%)
(4,515) 4,839 N.M
(2,399) 23,382 N.M
6,918 5,017 37.9%
4,519 28,399 (84.1%)

As the Group intends to focus on its green technology business, the Company had in October 2015
entered into a sale and purchase agreement to dispose of its packaging business (comprising 3
subsidiaries, viz Yourun Packaging Technology (Hangzhou) Co., Ltd, Yue Hai Colour Printing and
Packaging Co., Ltd and Jia Hua Packaging and Printing Co., Ltd). For the purpose of financial reporting,
the packaging business is considered disposed of in October 2015 (i.e. a discontinued operation).
Consequently, the Group cumently only has one business segment, which is the green technology
segment. As such, continuing operations refer to the existing green technology segment while
discontinued operations refer to the disposed packaging segment.

The results of the packaging business from January 2015 to October 2015 (date of effective disposal) have
been included in the line item ‘profit for the year from discontinued operations, net of tax’ and the
comparatives relating to FY2014 have also been restated in accordance with FRS 105 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations. The assets and liabilities of the packaging business were
accordingly deconsolidated with effect from 31 October 2015 from the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Due to the strong demand for the green technology and related services in China, the Group has been
awarded an insulation project and an underground utilities tunnel project in FY2015. Both projects are in
the form of public-private-partnerships (“PPP"). The revenue recognition of these PPP projects is based
on the requirements of INT FRS 112,

The revenue from continuing operations, that is, the green technology segment contributed positively to
both the Group's revenue and profitability for FY2015. The revenue from green technology segment
increased from RMB 30.5 million in FY2014 to RMB 90.8 million in FY2015. The net profit from continuing
operations after tax attributable to equity holders of the Company was RMB 2.1 million in FY2015
compared to RMB 18.5 million in FY2014. The packaging business was, for the purpose of financial
reporting, disposed of in October 2015 and accounted for as a discontinued operation in the statement of
comprehensive income. Including the profit from discontinued operations (net of tax) of RMB 2.4 million,
the Group's net profits for FY2015 was RMB 4.5 million as compared to RMB 28.4 million for FY2014,

Revenue and Gross Profit

Revenue from continuing operations increased by RMB 60.3 million or 197.3% from RMB 30.5 million in
FY¥2014 to RMB 90.8 million in FY2015, The revenue in FY2015 was mainly due to the Group achieving an
approximately 20.9% completion on the insulation project in China Harbin city to upgrade an existing estate
with a built-up area of approximately 1.32 million sgm with environmental friendly technology and
architecture. In addition, the Group also completed approximately 4.3% of an underground utility tunnel
project in China Harbin city. Both projects started in October 2015.

The gross margin from continuing operations increased from 22.6% in FY2014 to 23.3% in FY2015 mainly
due to a higher profit margin for insulation project, which is partially offset by the lower profit margin for
underground utility tunnel project.

Other Profit & Loss ltems

The decrease in other operating income was mainly due to higher government grants and subsidies of
RMB 26.5 million received in FY2014 as compared to RMB 1k in FY2015. The government grants/subsidy
income for FY2015 had been classified as revenue pursuant to the requirements of INT FRS 112.

Administrative expenses from continuing operations relate mainly to those of a subsidiary, Harbin
Shengming Energy Saving & Technology Co., Ltd., which became a subsidiary of the Group since June
2014 and accounted for & months of expenses in FY2014. Besides, the increase in administrative
expenses was partially due to the increase in staff costs by RMB 1.5 million from RMB 1.9 million in
F¥2014 to RMB 3.4 million in FY2015. The increase is further attributed to the increase in professional fees
and the foreign exchange loss by RMB 0.5 million and RMB 0.5 million respectively as compared to
FY2014.
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Interest expense for continuing operations increased by RMB 5.7 million mainly due to the interest of
RMB4.1 million charged on the balances due to the purchaser of the packaging business and its
related parties being recognized as finance costs for FY2015. The remaining increase of RMB 1.6
million was due to the bank borrowings obtained during the year as the Group borrowed a loan of
RME 149 million which was fully repaid by year end.

Management believes they are able to enjoy tax concessions on certain projects. However, the
actual business tax and income tax payable on the PPP projects income is generally determined and
agreed with the relevant tax authorities in China, which might be different from the business tax and
income tax provisions made in the financial statements. Provision for tax has been made as such
caoncessions are subject to the relevant authorities’ approval which has not been obtained as at the
date of the financial statements.

2.Statement of Financial Position

SELECTED DATA 31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014
RMB 000 RMB'000
Total assets 212,322 325,987
Property, plant and equipment and land use rights 1,152 92,103
Contract work-in-progress 32,355 30,057
Inventories 779 26,708
Trade and bills receivables — third parties 91,864 113,282
Other receivables and prepayments 84,092 39,380
Cash and bank balances 609 15,634
Total liabilities 171,417 225,646
Trade and bills payables — third parties 38,006 79,282
Other payables and accruals 17,621 13,744
Due to related parties — non-trade 1,510 28,752
Loans and borrowings 103,316 90,666
Non-controlling interests - 55,892
Total quity 40,905 100,341

The financial position as at 31 December 2014 was inclusive of the packaging subsidiaries, which
were disposed of during FY2015, whereas the financial position as at 31 December 2015 consisted
only of the green technology segment (i.e. the assets and liabilities of the packaging subsidiaries
were deconsolidated as at 31 December 2015). As such, the respective assets and liabilities of the
Group as at 31 December 2015 would generally be lower than those as at 31 December 2014.

The carrying value of property, plant and equipment and land use rights decreased by RMB 91.0
million, and the amount of RMB 89.2 million in FY2014 was entirely attributable to the packaging
segment. Excluding this, the carrying value of the property, plant and eguipment of the green
technology segment would have decreased by RMB1.8 million, which was mainly due to the
reclassification of the cost of solar heating system and boiler system used in Hebai Project from
“plant and equipment” to “project cost” of RMB 1.9 million during FY2015 and the depreciation of
RME 0.6 million, partially offset by the plant and equipment additions of RMB0.7 million.

Inventories decreased by RMB 25.9 million, of which RMB 26.7 million was attributable to the
packaging business as at 31 December 2014. Excluding this, inventories of the green technology
segment would have increased by RMB 0.8 million. The increase is in line with more projects being
carried out by year end.

Trade and bills receivables decreased by RMB 27.0 million, of which RMB 118.9 million was
attributable to the packaging business as at 31 December 2014, Excluding this, trade receivables of
the green technology segment would have increased by RMB 91.9 million. The increase is mainly
due to the contract assets (service concession receivables) of RMB 87.7 million due from the PRC
government for approximately 20.9% and 4.3% completion of the insulation project and underground
utilities tunnel project respectively.

Other receivables and prepayments increased by RMB 44.7 million, of which RMB 18.8 million was
attributable to the packaging business as at 31 December 2014. Excluding this, other receivables
and prepayments of the green technology segment would have increased by RMB 63.5 million.
Other receivables attributable to the green technology segment was RMB 34.6 million as at 31
December 2015 due mainly to government grants of RMB 8.0 million receivables that were still
outstanding and the net receivable from purchaser of packaging business of RMB 25.0 million. The
prepayment of RMB 49.5 million is mainly due to advances made to a subcontractor.

Trade and bills payables decreased by RMB42.9 million, of which RMB 58.8 million was attributable
to the packaging business segment as at 31 December 2014, Excluding this, trade payables of the
green technology segment would have increased by RMB 15.7 million, which are the payables to the
construction materials suppliers and the sub-contractors and is in line with the 2 new projects
commenced in FY2015.

The loan from related parties of RMB 65.8 million was mainly due to the interest free loan provided
by related parties for working capital purposes.

The loan from external parties of RMB 36.6 million consists of RMB 5.4 million reclassified from “loan
from related parties” and RMB 6.2 million reclassified from “loan from corporate shareholder” as at
31 December 2014. The balance of RMB 25.0 million is due to external parties who provide financial
assistance to the projects in Harbin Shengming. Such financial assistance is interest free, unsecured
and repayable on demand.

Following another profitable year in its green technology segment and the disposal of the packaging
business, the Group's net equity attributable to the shareholders of the Company amounted to RMB
40.9 million as at 31 December 2015 compared to RMB 44.4 million as at 31 December 2014. Also,
the Group's net current assets position has improved and stood at RMB 38.3 million as at 31
December 2015 compared to RMB 6.4 million as at 31 December 2014. The Company also had a
net asset position of RMB 6.8 million as at 31 December 2015 instead of a net liability position of
RMEB10.6 million as at 31 December 2014.

3.Statement of Cash Flows

FY2015 FY2014

RMB'000 RMB'000
Cash used in operating activities (18,594) (B871)
Cash used in investing activities (34,451) (3,304)
Cash from financing activities 47 666 77
MNet decrease in cash and cash equivalents (5,379) (3.258)
Cash and cash equivalents as at beginning of year 5,988 9,248
Cash and cash equivalents as at end of year 609 5,988

The Group reported a net decrease in cash and cash equivalents of RMB 5.4 million from RMB 6.0
million as at 31 December 2014 to RMB 0.6 million as at 31 December 2015.

The net decrease in cash and cash equivalents for FY2015 is mainly due to net cash used in
operating activities and investing activities of RMB 18.6 million and RMB 34.5 million respectively,
which is partially offset by net cash from financing activities of RMB 47.7 million.



4.Key Risk Factors & Risk Management

Risk of dependency on the level of the PRC government's spending and involvement in energy
conservation management projects

As a significant source of the revenue of the Group's green technology segment is subsidies granted by
the PRC government, the level of revenue that will be derived from the Green Technology Segment would
largely depend on continued spending by the relevant PRC government and provincial government to
support energy conservation management projects.

Various factors would affect the nature, scale, location and timing of the PRC governments’ public
investment plans in the energy conservation management sector in the PRC. These factors include the
government’s policy and priorities regarding different regional economies across the PRC and the general
condition and prospects of the overall economy of the PRC. Any significant reduction in the PRC
governments' budgets relating to such energy conservation management sector, will lead to a decline in
revenue arising from a smaller number of projects, lower contract value for the projects and/or a decline in
profit margin due to competition to secure available projects. This could have a material and adverse effect
on the green technology segment. As such, the Group will try, as far as possible, to plan for new
underground carparks and commercial space into the estates under upgrading which can be separately
sold or rented out for income instead of being totally dependent on government grants or subsidies. In
addition, the Group will also operate the underground utility tunnel for 25 years after the completion of
construction to increase the income stream.

Risk of reliance on independent sub-contractors to provide various services

In undertaking the Group's Green Technology business, the Group will be engaging independent third
party contractors to provide various services including installation and construction work for its projects.
Even though these third party contractors are responsible for the quality of their services, there is no
assurance that the services rendered by such independent third party contractors will always be
satisfactory or match the intended quality level. In the event of any loss or damage which arises from the

default of these independent third party contractors, the Group may nevertheless be liable for their default.

The Green Technology business will also be dependent on skilled construction labour, supervisors and
managerial staff with experience in the green architecture and green technology industry. Any dearth in the
availability of such labour resources will have an adverse effect on the operations and eventually its
financial performance.

Furthermore, the Group manages its cashflows partially by structuring the projects such that the third party
contractors will finance or obtain financing for the construction activities and the Group will only make
payment to these third party contractors in agreed tranches upon satisfactory completion of such activities.
There is a risk that any of the contractors may experience financial or other difficulties which may affect
their ability to carry out their works, thus affecting and delaying the completion of the Group's projects
andfor resulting in additional costs to the Group. Should any of the contractors fail to meet the required
standards and suitable replacement contractors are not engaged in time, the Group's business and
financial performance may be materially and adversely affected. Any such failure on the part of the
contractors may also result in adverse publicity for the Group, which in turn may have an adverse impact
on the Group's reputation, prospects and growth.

In mitigating these risks, the Group employs a stringent process in its selection of third party
sub-contractors on its projects.

Risk of increases in raw material costs

The raw materials that the Group utilise comprise construction materials like thermal cladding, doors and
windows and green architecture for the green technology projects. In arder to ensure timely completion of
the projects, the Group needs to obtain sufficient quantities of good quality raw materials at acceptable
prices in a timely manner, As it is common practice in the industry not to have formal long-term supply
arrangements with the suppliers, there is no assurance that the Group will be able to obtain sufficient
quantities from suppliers of raw material of acceptable quality and at acceptable price in a timely manner.
Further, fluctuations in the prices of these raw materials will have a significant impact on the profit margins
and hence the profitability. Such fluctuations has a direct impact on the prices of raw materials. The lack of
availability of these raw materials will also have a significant impact on the Group's operations.

Project Expansion Risk

The Group has expanded its business to include those of upgrading existing infrastructure using
green architecture and green technology, which is a relatively young industry in the PRC. In February
2015, the Group announced that it has secured various upgrading projects totaling more than
5,000,000 sgm. In October 2015, the Group further announced that it has secured a underground
utility tunnel project which involves the construction of underground utility tunnel covering a length of
about 12 km in the Southern Harbin Industrial New Town area and the Harbin airport area, and the
operation and maintenance of the utility tunnel for 25 years. This rapid expansion brings along certain
associated risks and may put a strain on the Group's resources. However, the Group is confident that
its strong management team and its quality third party sub-contractors will ensure that the Group will
always be able to continue to strengthen the core competencies and adopt a strategy of cautious
expansion.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Group's and the Company's
financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group's and the
Company's exposure to interest rate risk arises primarily from their interest-bearing loans and
borrowings. The Group does not use derivative financial instruments to hedge its interest rate risks.

The Group's policy is to manage interest cost using a mix of fixed and floating rate debts and to keep
the majority of its loans and borrowings at fixed rates of interest.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group or the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting financial
obligations due to shortage of funds. The Group's and the Company's exposure to liquidity risks
arises primarily from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and liabilities.

The Group's and the Company's objective is to maintain a balance between the continuity of funding
and flexibility through the use of interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

The Group's and the Company's liquidity risk management policy is to maintain sufficient liquid
financial assets and credit facilities with reputable banks. Substantial amounts of the Group’s cash
and cash equivalents deposited with reputable financial institutions so as to provide the Group with
the flexibility to meet working capital and capital investment needs.

Foreign currency risk
The Group operates predominantly in the People's Republic of China ("PRC") and usually transacts

in Renminbi ("RMB"), the official currency in China. Currently, the PRC government imposes control
over foreign currencies. RMB is not freely convertible. Enterprises operating in the PRC can enter
into exchange transactions through the People's Bank of China or other authorised financial
institutions. Payments for imported materials or services and remittance of earnings of the
subsidiaries to the Company, which is outside of the PRC, are subject to the availability of foreign
currencies which depends on the foreign currency denominated earnings of the enterprise, or
exchanges of RMB for foreign currency must be arranged through the People's Bank of China or
other authorised financial institutions. Approval for exchanges at the People's Bank of China or other
authorised financial institutions is granted to enterprises in the PRC for valid reasons such as
purchase of imported materials and remittance of earnings. While conversion of RMB into Singapore
doliars or other currencies can generally be effected at the People's Bank of China or other authorised
financial institutions, there is no guarantee that it can be effected at all times.

The Group does not have significant transaction currency exposures.
Transactional currency exposures arising from sales or purchases that are denominated in a currency
other than the respective functional currencies of Group entities, primarily SGD and RMB, are not

significant.

The Group relies on continuing financial support from its banker as disclosed in the financial
statements.
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The Group manages its foreign exchange exposure risk by matching, as far as possible, receipts and
payments in each individual currency. Foreign currency is converted into the relevant functional
currency as and when the management deemed necessary. The unhedged exposure is reviewed and
manitored closely on an ongoing basis and management will consider hedging any material exposure
where appropriate.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments should a counterparty
default on its obligations. The Group's and the Company's exposure to credit risk arises primarily
from trade and other receivables. For other financial assets (including unquoted equities and cash
and bank balances), the Group and the Company minimise credit risk by dealing exclusively with high
credit rating counterparties.

The Group's objective is to seek continual revenue growth while minimising losses incurred due to
increased credit risk exposure. The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties.
It is the Group's policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the
result that the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant.

As at 31 December 2015, approximately 96% of the Group's trade receivables are due from one
customer which is an agency of the PRC govemment.

5.Returns to Shareholders

After disposal of the packaging business, the Group recorded another year of profitability in FY2015.
The eamnings per share from continuing operations for FY2015 was RMB 0.89 cents compared to
RMB 7.76 cents in FY2014. The net asset value per share for FY2015 was RMB 17.13 cents as
compared to RMB 42.00 cents in FY2014.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board of Directors does not recommend any dividends
payout as the Group is currently in a rapid expansion phase for its new green technology business
and foresees better use of this cashflows being plough back to operations compared to a dividend
payout. The Board of Directors will continue to work hard to generate greater shareholder value and
returns and is looking forward to continued positive contributions from the new income stream brought
in by the Group's green technology business.

6.Prospects & Plans

After disposal of the packaging business, the Group is focusing on the green technology segment.
The Group is of the view that the demand for green technology and related services will continue to
be strong in China. On the basis that the Group has been awarded the new green technology projects
and underground utilities tunnel project and barring any unforeseen circumstances, the Group's
green technology segment is likely to continue to contribute positively to the Group's financials for
FY2016.

Corporate Governance

The Board of Directors and Management are committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
govemance by complying with the principles and guidelines of the revised Code of Governance 2012 (the
“Code") issued by the Corporate Governance Committee.

Good corporate governance is integral to a sound corporation as it promotes corporate transparency and
protects and enhances shareholders' interest. This statement outlines the main corporate governance
practices and processes that were in place since the financial year beginning on 1 January 2015 and ended
on 31 December 2015 (*FY2015") and provides the rationale for areas where the Company has deviated
from the Code.

(A)

BOARD MATTERS

Board's Conduct of its Affairs

Principle 1; Every company should be headed by an effective Board to lead and control the
company. The Board is collectively responsible for the success of the company. The
Board works with Management to achieve this and the Management remains
accountable to the Board.

In FY2015, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) comprised two (2) Executive Directors, one (1)
Mon-executive Director and three (3) Independent Directors, all possessing the right core
competencies and diversity of experience which enabled them to effectively contribute to the Group.
Mr Li Mingyang, with effect from 1 March 2016, had been appointed as the Chief Business
Development Officer and Executive Director of the Company. Mr Zhao Lizhi, also with effect from 1
March 2016, had been re-designated as the Company's Executive Chairman. Mr Li Bin, with effect
from 8 March 2016, had resigned as an Executive Director of the Company. Mr Lu King Seng, with
effect from 1 April 2016, had resigned as an Independent Director of the Company. As at the date of
this Annual Report, the Board comprises the following members:

Mr Zhao Lizhi (Executive Chairman)

Ms Wu Xueying (Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director)

Mr Li Mingyang (Chief Business Development Officer and Executive Director)
Dr Yao Fengge (Non-Executive and Independent Director)

Mr Kuan Cheng Tuck (Non-Executive and Independent Director)

The Board is responsible for:
(a) approving the Group's key business strategies and financial objectives;

(b)  overseeing the conduct of the Group’s business to evaluate whether the business is being
properly managed;

(c) establishing a framework for proper internal controls and risk management;

(d)  the Group’s compliance to laws, regulations, policies, directives, guidelines and internal code
of conduct; and

(e) the satisfactory fulfilment of social responsibilities of the Group.

Board Processes

To assist in the execution of its responsibilities, the Board has established a number of Board
Committees including a Nominating Committee (the “NC"), a Remuneration Committee (the “RC"),
and an Audit Committee (the “AC”"). The effectiveness of each committee is constantly monitored.
The Board has also established a framework for the management of the Group including a system
of internal control.
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The Board currently holds at least two (2) scheduled meetings each year. It also holds additional
meetings at such other times as may be necessary to address any specific significant matters that
may arise. The Company's Constitution allows meetings to be conducted by way of a telephone
conference or by means of similar communications equipment whereby all persons participating in
the meetings are able to hear each other. The agenda for meetings is prepared in consultation with
the Group's Executive Chairman. Standing items include financial reports, strategic matters,
governance, business risk issues and compliance. Executive officers may, from time to time, be
invited to attend Board meetings to provide updates on operational matters.

The Board conducts an annual review of its processes to ensure that it is able to carry out its functions
in the most effective manner.

Board and Board Committee Meetings held in FY2015

For FY2015, the Board held 6 meetings and the attendance of each Director at the Board and Board
Committee meetings is as follows:

Mama Board Audit
Committas Committes Committes
M. af Me.af Mo of Mo, af M. af Mo, af M. of Mo, af
held attended held attended hald attended held attendod
Zhao Lizhi
s 20m 20 A

(Executive Chairman)

W Xusaying

(Chinf Executive

5 Fos in i
Otficer and Executive
Diirmetor)
Li Biridt
4 0 200 qim
(Executive Director)
vao Fengge
iMon-Executive and 4 2 2 :
Independent Director
o ' “ 2z 2 1
Kusn Cheng Tuck
(Man-Exscutive and L 2 = 1
Indepandent Dirmctor)
Lu King Seng™
(Mon-Executive and Ll 2 z 1

Indepandant Directer)

Li Mingysng™

(Ehinf Business
Davelopment Officar - = - -
and Executive

Dirmeter)

Notes:
(1) Attendance by invitation.

(2) Mr Li Bin resigned as an Executive Director of the Company with effect from 8 March 2016.

(3)  Mr Lu King Seng resigned as an Independent Director of the Company with effect from 1
April 2016

(4) Mr Li Mingyang was appointed the Chief Business Development Officer and Executive
Director of the Company with effect from 1 March 2016.

Matters Requiring Board Approval

The Company has prepared a document with guidelines setting forth the matters reserved for the
Board's decision and clear directions to Management on matters that must be approved by the
Board. The document specifies that the Board's approval is required for matters such as corporate
restructuring, mergers and acquisitions, major investments, material acquisitions and disposals of
assets, major corporate policies on key areas of operations, the release of the Group's half-yearly
and annual results, interested person transactions of a material nature, and declaration of interim
dividends and proposal of final dividends.

All other matters are delegated to Board Committees whose actions are reported to and monitored by the
Board. The Board does not abdicate its responsibility for such delegations of authority.

Training of Directors

The Company provides a formal letter upon the appointment of new Directors. Directors receive
comprehensive and tailored induction on joining the Board including their duties as Directors and how to
discharge those duties, including a comprehensive orientation programme presented by the Chief
Executive Officer. Directors are also provided with updates on the relevant new laws, regulations and
changing commercial risks in the Group's operating environment through regular presentations and
meetings; and they also have the opportunity to visit the Group's operational facilities in the People’s
Republic of China and meet with Management to gain a better understanding of business operations.

The Company does not have a formal training program for new Directors. However, to assist the Board in
discharging its duties, newly appointed Directors will be briefed on the business operations and regulatory
issues relating to the Group to ensure that they are familiar with the Group’s business and governance
practices and be provided with a formal letter setting out the Director's duties and obligations. Directors are
also informed of regulatory changes affecting the Group. In addition, the Board encourages its members to
participate in seminars and receive training to improve themselves in the discharge of their duties as
Directors, The Company understands that some of the Independent Directors have participated in
seminars and receive training to improve themselves in the discharge of their duties as Directors. The
Company will also share its industry-specific knowledge with Directors as appropriate and may hire
professionals to provide training for first-time Directors in areas such as financial reporting matters and
legal rights and responsibilities of directors as appropriate.

Board Composition and Balance

Principle 2:  There should be a strong and independent element on the Board, which is able to exercise
objective judgment on corporate affairs independently, in particular, from Management and
10% shareholders. No individual or small group of individuals should be allowed to dominate
the Board’s decision making.

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board comprises five (5) Directors of which two (2) are
Independent Directors. The two (2) Independent Directors are Dr Yao Fengge and Mr Kuan Cheng Tuck.
The criterion of independence is based on the definition given in the Code. The Board and the NC consider
a Director to be “independent” if he has no relationship with the Company, its related corporations, its 10%
shareholders or its officers that could interfere, or be reasonably perceived to interfere, with the exercise of
that Director's independent business judgement with a view to the best interests of the Company. The
Board and the NC are of the opinion that the Independent Directors satisfy these criteria. The NC is of the
opinion that the Independent Directors are independent in character and judgement and that there are no
relationships or circumstances which are likely to affect, or could appear to affect, their judgement. As at
the date of this Annual Report, there are no Independent Directors of the Company who sit on the board of
any of the Company's principal subsidiaries.

The composition of the Board is determined in accordance with the following principles:

(a) the Board and its Board Committees should comprise a sufficient number of Directors to fulfil its
responsibilities and who as a group provide an appropriate balance and diversity of skills,
experience, gender and knowledge of the Company. They also provide core competencies such as
accounting or finance, business or management experience, industry knowledge, strategic planning
experience and customer-based experience or knowledge (this number may be increased where it
is felt that additional expertise is required in specific areas, or when an outstanding candidate is
identified);

(b)  the Board should comprise a majority of Non-executive Directors, with at least half of the Board
made up of Independent Non-executive Directors; and

(c) the Board should have enough Directors to serve on various committees of the Board without
overburdening the Directors or making it difficult for them to fully discharge their responsibilities.
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With two (2) out of five (5) Directors deemed to be independent, the Board is still able to exercise
independent judgment on corporate affairs and provide management with a diverse and objective
perspective on issues. As announced on 1 April 2016, the Company is currently in the midst of identifying
suitable candidate to be appointed as Independent Director. Furthermore, the Board will be able to interact
and work with the management team through a robust exchange of ideas and views to help shape the
Group's strategic direction.

The composition of the Board is reviewed on an annual basis by the NC to ensure that the Board has the
appropriate mix of expertise and experience, and collectively possesses the necessary core competencies
for effective functioning and informed decision-making. When a vacancy arises under any circumstance, or
where it is considered that the Board would benefit from the services of a new Director with particular skills,
the NC, in consultation with the Board, determines the selection criteria and selects candidates with the
appropriate expertise and experience for the position.

Independent members of the Board exercise no management functions in the Company or any of its
subsidiaries. Although all the Directors have equal responsibility for the performance of the Group, the role
of the Independent Directors is particularly important in reviewing and monitoring the performance of
executive management in meeting the Group's agreed goals and objectives and ensuring that the
strategies proposed by the executive management are fully discussed and rigorously examined taking into
account the long-term interests, not only of the shareholders, but also of employees, customers, suppliers
and the many communities in which the Group conducts business. The Board considers its Non-executive
and Independent Directors to be of sufficient calibre and number and their views to be of sufficient weight
that no individual or small group can dominate the Board's decision-making processes. The Independent
Directors have no financial or contractual interests in the Group other than by way of their fees as set out
in this statement.

The Board is of the view that its current compaosition of five (5) Directors is appropriate taking into account

the scope and nature of the operations of the Company and of the Group, the requirements of the business

and the need to avoid undue disruptions from changes to the composition of the Board and Board

Committees. As mentioned above, the Board is looking into the appointment of another Independent

Director, and will update shareholders in relation to the same in due course.

Other key information on the individual Directors of the Company is set out in page 8 to page 10 of this

Annual Report. Their shareholdings in the Company are also disclosed in the Directors' Statement. None

of the Directors hold shares in the subsidiaries of the Company.

Executive Chairman

Principle 3: There should be a clear division of responsibilities between the leadership of the
Board and the executives responsible for managing the company’s business. No one
individual should represent a considerable concentration of power.

The Group's Executive Chairman, Mr Zhao Lizhi, plays an instrumental role in developing the business of
the Group and provides the Group with strong leadership and vision.

The Executive Chairman’s role is to:
(a) lead the Board to ensure its effectiveness on all aspects of its role;

(b) set the agenda and ensure that adequate time is available for discussion of all agenda
items, in particular strategic issues;

(c) promote a culture of openness and debate at the Board;

(d) ensure that the Directors receive complete, adequate and timely information;

(e) ensure effective communication with shareholders;
(i encourage constructive relations within the Board and between the Board and Management;
(g) facilitate the effective contribution of Independent and Non-executive Directors in particular; and

(h) promote high standards of corporate governance.

The responsibilities set out above provide guidance and should not be taken as a comprehensive list of all
the duties and responsibilities of an executive chairman.

As at the date of this Annual Report, Mr Zhao Lizhi is the Executive Chairman of the Company. The
Company notes that Mr Zhao had been the Company's Non-executive Chairman for FY2015. However, Mr
Zhao had been involved in day-to-day management of the Company and its subsidiaries, and Management
had also frequently approached Mr Zhao for his advice in relation to the Group's business. As such, the
Company had accordingly re-designated Mr Zhao as the Executive Chairman of the Company on 1 March
2016. In addition, the Company has also appointed Ms Wu Xueying as its Chief Executive Officer. In view
of the key position played by the Group's Executive Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer, the Board
has appointed two (2) Independent Directors to ensure that a channel of communication is always available
to shareholders where they have concerns and where contact through normal channels of the Group's
Executive Chairman, or the Financial Controller ("FC"} has failed to resolve the concemns. The Company
will review and consider the appointment of a lead Independent Director in future.

All major decisions like substantial acquisitions, material contracts, acquisitions of banking facilities made
by the Executive Chairman are under the purview of review by the AC. His performance and appointment
to the Board will be reviewed periodically by the NC and his remuneration package will be reviewed
periodically by the RC. As such, the Board believes that there are adequate safeguards in place against an
uneven concentration of power and authority in a single individual.

The Board has no dissenting view on the Group's Executive Chairman’'s statement for the year under
review.

Board Membership

Principle 4: There should be a formal and transparent process for the appointment and
re-appointment of directors fo the Board.

For FY2015, the NC comprised Mr Kuan Cheng Tuck as the Chairman, and Mr Lu King Seng and Dr Yao
Fengge as members. As the date of this Annual Report, the NC comprises Mr Kuan Cheng Tuck as the
Chairman and Dr Yao Fengge as a member. All members of the NC are independent. The Board is looking
into the appointment of another Independent Director as NC member, and will update shareholders in
relation to the same in due course.

The Board has approved the written terms of reference of the NC. The NC performs the following
functions:

(a) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment of new Executive and
Mon-executive Directors, including making recommendations on the composition and
progressive renewal of the Board and review each Director's competencies, commitment,
contribution and performance (e.g. attendance, preparedness, participation and candour)
including, if applicable, whether he/she remains independent in the case of the Independent
Directors and the balance between Executive and Non-executive Directors appointed to the
Board;

(b) to regularly review the Board structure, size and composition and make recommendations to the
Board with regards to any adjustments that are deemed necessary;

(c) to determine the process for search, nomination, selection and appointment of new Board
members and be responsible for assessing the requisite gualifications and fulfiiment of being
independent of the nominees or candidates for appointment or election to the Board;

(d) to make plans for succession, in particular for the Executive Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer;




(e) to determine, on an annual basis, and as and when circumstances require, if a Director is
independent. If the NC determines that a Director, who has one (1) or more of the relationships
mentioned under the Code is in fact independent, the Company should disclose in full, the nature
of the Director's relationship and provide its views to the Board for the Board's consideration. The
NC may at its discretion determine a Director as non-independent even if he/she has no business
or other relationships with the Company, its related companies or its officers and should similarly
provide its views to the Board for the Board's consideration;

(f) to recommend Directors who are retiring by rotation to be put forward for re-election;

(g) to decide whether or not a Director is able to and has been adequately carrying out his/her duties
as a Director of the Company, particulardly when he/she has multiple board representations taking
into consideration the Director's number of listed company board representations and other
principal commitments;

(h) to be responsible for assessing the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and for assessing the
effective contribution and commitment of each individual Director to the effectiveness of the Board.
The results of the performance evaluation will be reviewed by the Chairman of the NC and the
assessment shall be disclosed annually; and

(i) to review of training and professional development programs for the Board.

In the event there is a need to change the structure of the Board, the chairmanship of the Company or the
membership of the Board Committees, the NC will review the change to be implemented and make
recommendations to the Board accordingly. For the new appointment of Directors, the NC will, in
consultation with the Board, examine the existing Board's strength, capabilities and the existing Directors'
contribution of skills, knowledge and experience to the Group and the Board. The NC will take into account
the future needs of the Group and together with the Board, it will seek candidates who are able to contribute
to the Group. The NC will attempt to seek candidates widely and beyond persons directly known to the
existing Directors and recommend suitable candidates to the Board and if such candidates are appointed,
announcements relating to their appointment shall be released via SGXNET. In the event of the cessation
of appointment of any Director or executive officer, the NC will conduct exit interviews with such Director or
executive officer, as the case may be, and announcements relating to such cessation(s) will also be
released via SGXNET.

The NC has in place internal guidelines to address the conflict of competing time commitments of Directors
serving on multiple boards. If a Director is on the board of other companies, the NC shall consider whether
he/she has been able to devote adeguate time and attention to the affairs of the Group. In the event there
are sufficient grounds for complaint, the Chairman of the Board will on the advice of the NC, discuss, and
if necessary, advise the Director concerned of the issues and the consequences of failure to rectify the
situation within the period required.

The current Board members generally have not more than three (3) directorships in other listed companies,
which, in the opinion of the NC, means that they have sufficient energy and time to focus on the affairs of
the Group. As such, the NC has currently not set a limit on the number of Directors' directarships in other
listed companies. The NC will however not rule out the requirement to set limits subsequently on its
Directors' directorships in other listed companies should subsequent situations warrant such action. After
conducting reviews, the NC is satisfied that currently the Directors have been able to devote adequate time
and attention to the affairs of the Group and that they are able to satisfy their duties as Directors to the
Company.

The Directors submit themselves for re-nomination and re-election at regular intervals of at least once
every three (3) years. Article 91 of the Company's Constitution provides that one-third of the Board or the
number nearest to one third is to retire by rotation and be subject to re-election at every Annual General
Meeting (“AGM"). In addition, Article 97 of the Company's Constitution also provides that newly appointed
Directors are required to submit themselves for re-nomination and re-appointment at the next AGM of the
Company.

The Board recognises the contribution of its Independent Directors who over time have developed deep
insight into the Group's businesses and operations and who are therefore able to provide invaluable
contributions to the Group. As such, the Board has not set a fixed term of office for each of its Independent
Directors so as to be able to retain the services of the Directors as necessary.

The dates of the appointment and last re-election of each Director as at the date of this Annual Report as
well as their directorships in listed companies (other than their directorship in the Company) are set out
below:

Directorship in Listed Company

Name of Date of Date of Last -
Director | Appointment | Re-election Present Pt Prending
3 years
Zhao Lizhi 18 July 2014 | 21 April 2015 - -
Wu Xueying(" 11 March 28 April 2014 - -
2014
Kuan Cheng 10 June 2014 | 21 April 2015 | CNMC Goldmine FDS Networks
Tuck Holdings Limited Group Limited
Kori Holdings
Limited
CW Group Holdings
Limited(®)

Yao Fengge” | 10 June 2014 | 21 April 2015 | Heilongjiang .

Beidahuang
Agriculture
Company Limited
(Aboh Sk s 2%
Al )("J
Li Mingyang!® | 1 March 2016 = - Z
Notes:
(1) Ms Wu Xueying was last re-elected on 11 March 2014, therefore in accordance with the
Company's Constitution, she will be subject to re-election at this forthcoming AGM.
(2) Dr Yao Fengge shall be subject to re-election at this forthcoming AGM.
(3) Listed on the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited.
(4) Listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.
(9) Mr Li Mingyang was appointed as a Director of the Company with effect from 1 March 20186, and

therefore in accordance with the Company's Constitution, he will be subject to re-appointment at
this forthcoming AGM.

Board Performance
Principle 5: There should be a formal annual assessment of the effectiveness of the Board as a whole

and its board committees and the contribution by the directors to the effectiveness of the
Board.
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The NC has established a process for assessing the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and its Board
Committees and for assessing the contribution by the Executive Chairman and each individual Director to
the effectiveness of the Board. The performance criteria which have been approved by the Board for the
Board evaluation includes an evaluation of the size and composition of the Board, the Board's access to
information, accountability, Board processes, and Board performance in relation to discharging its principal
responsibilities. In its assessment, the NC takes into consideration the frequency of the Board meetings,
Board independence, the rate at which issues raised are adequately dealt with, the effectiveness of the
Board Committees, and reports from the various Board Committees. Given the relatively small size of the
Board, the Board and the NC are of the opinion that there is no need at present to conduct a separate
formal assessment of the Board Committees other than the assessments being carried out in respect of
individual Directors and the Board.

The Board and the NC evaluate individual Directors on whether each Director continues to contribute
effectively and demonstrate commitment to the role (including commitment of time for Board and Board
Committee meetings, and any other duties) and have endeavoured to ensure that Directors appointed to
the Board possess the experience, knowledge and skills critical to the Group's business, so as to enable
the Board to make sound and well-considered decisions. The NC also considers whether the Director has
a reasonable understanding of the Group's business and the industry, the Director's working relationship
with the other members of the Board, as well as feedback from other Directors.

With respect to FY2015 and after due evaluation, the NC considered the performance of each individual
Director and the Board to be satisfactory. For avoidance of doubt, each member of the NC abstains from
voting on any resolution in respect of the assessment of his performance or re-nomination as Director.

Access to Information

In order to fulfill their responsibilities, Board members should be provided with complete,
adequate and timely information prior to Board meetings and on an on-going basis so as
to enable them to make informed decisions to discharge their duties and responsibilities.

Frinciple &:

Directors receive a regular supply of complete, adequate information, including quarterly updates of the
Group's activities, in a timely manner from Management about the Group and are entitled to request from
Management and should be provided with such additional information as needed to make informed
decisions so that they are equipped to play as full a part as possible in Board meetings. Detailed Board
papers are prepared for each meeting of the Board. The Board papers include sufficient information from
Management on financial, business, and corporate issues to enable Directors to be properly briefed on
issues to be considered at Board meetings. Information provided includes background or explanatory
information relating to matters to be brought before the Board, and copies of disclosure documents,
budgets, forecasts and internal financial statements, including explanations for any material variance
between projections and actual results. New releases issued by the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited (the “SGX-ST") and Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority which are relevant to
the Directors are circulated to the Board. The Company Secretary also informs the Directors of upcoming
conferences and seminars relevant to their roles as Directors of the Company.

All Directors have unrestricted access to the Group's records and information and receive detailed financial
and operational reports from senior Management during the year to enable them to carry out their duties.
Directors also liaise with senior Management as required, and may consult with other employees and seek
additional information on request.

All Directors have separate and independent access to the Company Secretary. The Company Secretary
administers, attends and prepares minutes of Board meetings, and assists the Executive Chairman in
ensuring that Board procedures are followed and reviewed so that the Board functions effectively, as well
as the Board’s compliance with the Company's Constitution and relevant rules and regulations, including
requirements of the Companies Act (Cap. 50) of Singapore (the “Companies Act”) and the SGX-ST. The
Company Secretary ensures that good information flows within the Board and its Board Committees and
between Management and MNon-executive Directors, advises the Board on all governance matters,
facilitates orientation, and assists with professional development as required.

(B)

Should Directors, whether as a group or individually, need independent professional advice in the
furtherance of their duties, the cost of such professional advice will be borne by the Company.

REMUNERATION MATTERS
Procedures for Developing Remuneration Policies

Principle 7:  There should be a formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on
executive remuneration and for fixing the remuneration packages of individual
directors. No director should be involved in deciding his own remuneration.

For FY2015, the RC comprised Independent Directors Mr Lu King Seng as the Chairman, and Mr
Kuan Cheng Tuck and Dr Yao Fengge as members. As the date of this Annual Report, the RC
comprises Independent Directors, Mr Kuan Cheng Tuck as the Chairman and Dr Yao Fengge as a
member. The Board is locking into the appointment of another Independent Director as RC member,
and will update shareholders in relation to the same in due course.

The Board has approved the written terms of reference of the RC. The RC performs the following
functions:

(a) to review and recommend to the Board, a general framework of remuneration and to
determine the specific remuneration packages and terms of employment for:

(i) each Director;
(i) the Executive Chairman (or executive of equivalent rank);
(i) senior management of the Group; and
(iv) employees related to Directors or, substantial shareholders of the Group;
(b) meetings of the RC are be held as the RC deems appropriate. The RC meets at least

once a year and meetings are be organised so that attendance is maximised. Meetings
may be called, at any other time, by the Chairman of the RC or any member of the RC.
Directors or Management may be invited to the meetings;

(c) the Secretary of the RC is the Company Secretary for the time being or, such other
person as may be nominated by the RC;

(d) the Company Secretary attends all meetings and minutes the proceedings thereof,

(e) minutes of all meetings are confirmed by the Chairman of the meeting and circulated to
all members of the RC;

(f if the Chairman of the RC so decides, the minutes are also circulated to other members
of the Board. Any Director may, provided there is no conflict of interest and with the
agreement of the Chairman, obtain copies of the minutes of RC meetings;

(g) the notice of each meeting of the RC, confirming the venue, date and time and enclosing
an agenda of items to be discussed, are other than under exceptional circumstances,
forwarded to each member of the RC at least three (3) working days prior to the date of
the meeting;

(h) to recommend to the Board any performance bonus schemes which may be set up from
time to time and to do all acts necessary in connection therewith; and

(i) to carry out its duties in the manner that it deems expedient, subject always to any
regulations or restrictions that may be imposed upon the RC by the Board of Directors
from time to time.

As part of its review, the RC shall ensure that:
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(1 all aspects of remuneration including Directors’ fees, salaries, allowances, bonuses,
options and benefits-in-kind should be covered;

(1 the remuneration packages should be comparable within the industry and comparable
companies and shall include a performance-related element;

(1) the remuneration package of employees related to Directors or controlling shareholders of
the Group are in line with the Group's staff remuneration guidelines and commensurate
with their respective job scopes and levels of responsibility;

(V) existing relationships, if any, between the Company and its appointed remuneration
consultants will not affect the independence and objectivity of the remuneration
consultants; and

(V) the Executive Directors’ and key management personnel's contracts of service contain fair
and reasonable termination clauses which are not overly generous.

If necessary, the RC should seek expert advice inside and/or outside the Company on remuneration
of all Directors.

The members of the RC do not participate in any decision concerning their own remuneration.
Level and Mix of Remuneration

Principle 8: The level and structure of remuneration should be aligned with the long-term interest
and risk policies of the company and should be appropriate to aftract, retain and
motivate {a) the directors to provide good stewardship of the company, and (b) key
management personnel to successfully manage the company. However, companies
should avoid paying more for this purpose.

A significant proportion of Executive Directors’ remuneration is structured so as to link rewards to
corporate and individual performance.

The Group's remuneration policy is to provide compensation packages appropriate to attract, retain
and motivate the Directors and key personnel required to run the Group successfully.

The remuneration of the Executive Chairman, Mr Zhao Lizhi is based on the terms of the service
agreement entered into between Mr Zhao Lizhi and the Company effective 1 March 2016. The
aforesaid service agreement shall continue unless otherwise terminated by either party giving not
less than six (8) months' notice in writing to the other.

In determining the remuneration of the Non-executive Directors, the RC ensures that the level of
remuneration is appropriate to the level of contribution, taking into account factors such as effort and
time spent and responsibilities of the Non-executive Directors. The RC ensures that Non-executive
Directors are not over-compensated to the extent that their independence may be compromised. The
Board will, if necessary, consult experts on the remuneration of Non-executive Directors. The Board
will recommend the remuneration of the Non-executive Directors for approval at the AGM.

With regard to the remuneration of other key executives, the RC, together with Management, reviews
proposals which are made by the Executive Directors. The remuneration policy for the key
management executives takes into consideration the Group's performance, and the responsibility
and performance of individual key management executives. The latter is measured by goals and
objectives set for each key management executive in congruence with the Group’s overall goals and
objectives. None of the employees in the Company or any of its principal subsidiaries whose
remuneration exceed $$50,000 during the year is a relative of a Director or Substantial Shareholder
of the Company or any of its principal subsidiaries.

In addition, the Group is of the view that there is no requirement to institute contractual provisions to allow
the Company to reclaim incentive components of Executive Directors’ remuneration paid in prior years in
exceptional circumstances of misstatement of financial results, or of misconduct resulting in financial loss
as they owe a fiduciary duty to the Company and the Company should be able to avail itself to remedies
against the Executive Directors in the event of such breach of fiduciary duties.

Disclosure on Remuneration

Principle 9: Every company should provide clear disclosure of its remuneration policies, level and mix
of remuneration, and the procedure for setting remuneration, in the company's Annual
Report. It should provide disclosure in relation to its remuneration policies to enable
investors to understand the link belween remuneration paid to directors and key
management personnel, and performance.

The total remuneration and detailed breakdown of the top executives of the Group is not disclosed in this
Annual Report due to confidentiality and to avoid poaching of the Group's staff. The Group is not disclosing
the remuneration of the Executive Directors to the nearest thousand but in bands of $$100,000 for similar
reasons.

Details of remuneration paid to the Directors and the Group’s key executives for FY2015 are set out below:

Remuneration Band Fees Salary Bonus Others Total
and Name (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)

Directors who are paid between S$50,001 to S§150,000

Wu Xueying | - ‘ 100 [ - | - | 100

Directors who are paid between S$0 to S$50,000

Zhao Lizhi - - - - -
Li Mingyang(" - - - - -
Li Bin®® - 100 - - 100
Kuan Cheng Tuck!® 100 = = = 100
Lu King Seng®! 100 - - - 100
Yao Fenggel® 100 - - - 100

Key Executives who are paid between S$100,001 to 5§150,000

Jong Voon Hool® | - ‘ 58.3 l - | 417 | 100

Key Executives who are paid between S$0 to 5$50,000

Li Zhao Kun(™

s 100 . | 2 100

Notes:

(1) Mr Li Mingyang was appointed as a Director of the Company with effect from 1 March 2016, and as
such, did not receive any Directors' fees for FY2015.

(2) Mr Li Bin had resigned as a Director of the Company with effect from 8 March 2016, and his total
remuneration for FY2015 in the form of a salary amounted to $$36,000.

(3) Mr Kuan Cheng Tuck's total remuneration for FY2015 in the form of Directors’ fees amounted to
58545,000.

(4) Mr Lu King Seng had resigned as an Independent Director of the Company with effect from 1 April
20186, his total remuneration for FY2015 in the form of Directors’ fees amounted to $$40,000.
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(5) Dr Yao Fengge's total remuneration for FY2015 in the form of Directors’ fees amounted to
S5§35,000.
(8) Mr Jong Voon Hoo had resigned as Chief Financial Officer of the Company with effect

from 3 August 2015, and his remuneration for FY2015 in the form of a salary amounted to
5$84,000. The Company however has since retained Mr Jong as its consultant, and Mr
Jong's remuneration for FY2015 in the form of consultancy fees amounted to $$60,000.

{7 Mr Li Zhao Kun was appointed as the Financial Controller of the Company with effect from
3 August 2015, and his total remuneration for FY2015 in the form of a salary was less than
S5$50,000.

ACCOUNTABILITY, AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Accountability

Principle 10: The Board should present a balanced and understandable assessment of the
company’s performance, position and prospects.

Cur Company announces its financial results on a half-yearly basis and other information via
SGXNET in accordance with the requirement of the SGX-ST. The Company aims to provide the
shareholders with a detailed analysis, explanation and assessment of the Group's financial position
and prospects.

Management provides all members of the Board with management accounts and such explanation
and information on a half-yearly basis and as the Board may require from time to time to enable the
Board to make a balanced and informed assessment of the Group’s performance, position and
prospects.

Risk Management and Internal Control

Principle 11: The Board is responsible for the governance of risk. The Board should ensure that
Management maintains a sound system of risk management and internal controls
to safeguard shareholders' interests and the company's assets, and should
determine the nature and extent of the significant risks which the Board is willing to
take in achieving its strategic objectives.

The Board determines the Group's levels of risk tolerance and risk policies, and oversees the
management in the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management and internal
control systems.

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the overall internal control framework, but
recognises that no cost effective internal control system will preclude all errors and irregularities, as
a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Board and the AC reviews regularly the adegquacy and effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems, including financial, operational, compliance, and
information technology controls to ensure that that such systems are sound and adequate to provide
reasonable assurance of the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal controls, addressing
financial, operational and compliance risks. Based on the internal controls established and
maintained by the Group, work performed by the external auditors as well as the internal auditors and
reviews performed by Management, the Board, with the concurrence of the AC, is of the opinion that
the intemal controls, including financial, operational, compliance, and information technology
controls, and risk management systems put in place by the Management are adequate and effective
as at 31 December 2015.

The Board has also received the following assurance from the Group's Chief Executive Officer and
FC that:

(a) the financial records have been properly maintained and the financial statements give a
true and fair view of the Company’s operations and finances; and

(b) the Group's risk management and internal controls system are effective.

No risk committee has been established as the Board has assumed the responsibility of the risk
management function and oversees the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's risk
management systems and procedures.

Management regularly reviews the Group's business and operational activities to identify areas of
significant business risks, as well as appropriate measures to control and mitigate these risks.
Management reviews all the significant control policies and procedures and highlight all significant
findings to the Directors and the AC.

Audit Committee

Principle 12: The Board should establish an Audit Committee with written terms of reference
which clearly set out its authority and duties.

For FY2015, the AC comprised three (3) Independent Directors, Mr Kuan Cheng Tuck as the
Chairman, and Mr Lu King Seng and Dr Yao Fengge as members. As the date of this Annual Report,
the AC comprises of two (2) Independent Directors, Mr Kuan Cheng Tuck as the Chairman, and Dr
Yao Fengge as a member. The Board is looking into the appointment of another Independent Director
as an AC member, and will update shareholders in due course. Mr Kuan Cheng Tuck has financial
management experience and relevant accounting expertise and experience. Accordingly, the AC is
appropriately qualified to discharge its responsibilities. The AC assists the Board in discharging their
responsibility to safeguard the assets, maintain adequate accounting records, and develop and
maintain effective systems of internal control, with the overall objective of ensuring that Management
creates and maintains an effective control environment in the Group. The AC provides a channel of
communication between the Board, Management and the external auditors of the Group on matters
relating to audit.

The Board has approved the written terms of reference of the AC. Specifically, the AC's duties include
the following:

(a) review the Group's financial and results of operations and accounting policies;

(b) review the Group’s audit plans of the external auditors and the internal auditors, their scope
of work and the results of the external auditors' examination and the internal auditors'
evaluation of the Group's internal accounting control systems;

(c) review the Group's annual consolidated financial statements and the external auditors’ report
on those financial statements, and discuss any significant adjustments, major risk areas,
changes in accounting policies, compliance with Singapore Financial Reporting Standards,
concerns and issues arising from their audits including any matters which the auditors may
wish to discuss in the absence of Management, where necessary, before submission to the
Board for approval;

(d) review the financial statements of the Company and the Group before the submission to the
Board for approval and prior to the Group's announcement of the results at the end of each
reporting period;

(e) review and discuss with external and internal auditors, any suspected fraud, irregularity or
infringement of any relevant laws, rules or regulations, which has or is likely to have a material
impact on the Group's operating results or financial position and Management's response;

f) review the co-operation given by the Group’'s management and officers to the external
auditors;

() undertake such other reviews and projects as may be requested by the Board, and report to
the Board its findings from time to time on matters arising and requiring the attention of the
AC;
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(h) review and evaluate the Group's administrative, operating and internal accounting
controls and procedures;

(i) review the Group's procedures by which employees of the Group may, in confidence,
report to the Chairman of the AC, possible improprieties in matters of financial reporting or
other matters and ensure that there are arrangements in place for independent
investigation and follow-up actions in relation thereto;

(i review and establish procedures for receipt, retention and treatment of complaints
received by the Group regarding, inter alia, criminal offences involving the Group or its
employees, questionable accounting, auditing, business, safety, or other matters that may
impact negatively on the Group;

(k) review and ratify any interested person transactions falling within the scope of Chapter 8
of the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST,

n review any potential conflicts of interests;

(m) consider and recommend to the Board on proposals to the shareholders on the
appointment and re-appointment of the external auditors and matters relating to the
resignation or dismissal of the external auditors and approving the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditors;

(n) review the appointments of and (on an annual basis) review the remuneration of persons
occupying managerial positions who are related to a Director, Chief Executive Officer, or
a substantial shareholder of the Company;

(o) generally undertake such other functions and duties which may be required by statute or
the rules of the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST, and by such amendments made thereto
from time to time;

p) ensure that all internal control weaknesses are satisfactorily and properly rectified;
(q) evaluate the independence of the external auditors;
(r) review the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal audit function and ensuring that a

clear reporting structure is in place between the AC and the internal auditors;

(s) review the Group's key financial risk areas; the outcome of the aforesaid reviews shall be
disclosed in the Company's annual report (or in instances where the findings are material,
make appropriate disclosures via SGXNET immediately);

(t) commission and review the findings of internal investigations into matters where there is
any suspected fraud or irregularity, or failure of internal controls or infringement of any
Singapore law, rule or regulation which has or is likely to have a material impact on the
Group's results of operations and/or financial position;

(u) commission and review the annual internal controls audit until such time the AC is
satisfied that the Group's internal controls are robust and effective enough to mitigate the
Group's internal control weaknesses; and

(v) review and report to the Board on the Group's system of internal controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls, and risk management policies and
systems established by Management. This ensures that such a system is sound and
adequate to provide reasonable assurance of the adequacy and effectiveness of the
internal controls, addressing financial, operational and compliance risks.

The AC is authorised to investigate any matter within its terms of reference, and has full access to
Management and resources which are necessary to enable it to discharge its functions properly. It
also has full discretion to invite any Executive Director or executive management to attend its
meetings.

The AC has reviewed the Group's financial reporting function, interal controls and processes and is
satisfied with the adequacy and quality of the same. The AC is satisfied with the adequacy of the
Group's accounts and financial reporting resources and the performance of the Group's Finance
Department.

The AC has also reviewed the policy and arrangements by which the employees of the Group and
any other persons may, in confidence, raise concerns about the possible improprieties in matters of
financial reporting or other matters within the Group, with the objectives of ensuring that
arrangements are put in place for such concerns to be raised and independently investigated and for
appropriate follow-up action to be taken as and when the need arises. As at the date of this Annual
Report, the Group has putin place the Whistle-blowing Policy for this purpose. Copies of the “Whistle
Blowing" policy have been circulated to the employees and are also available at the Company's
registered office.

The Group'’s existing auditor, Ernst & Young LLP, have been the external auditor of the Group since
2004 and Mr Ang Chuen Beng is the current audit partner in charge effective from year ended 31
December 2013. For FY2015, the aggregate amount of fees payable to the external auditor is
RMEB1,332,000 {exclusive of Goods and Services Tax ("GST")) with audit related work carried out by
the external auditor amounting to fees of RMB1,279,000 and non-audit related work carried out by
the external auditor amounting to fees of RMB53,000 (exclusive of GST). The AC is satisfied that the
external auditor's independence has not been impaired.

The AC also has full access to the external auditor without the presence of Management and is
authorised to have full and unrestricted access to Management and all personnel, records,
operations, properties and other informational sources of the Group as required or desirable to
properly discharge its responsibilities. The AC has full discretion to invite any Director or Executive
Officer to its meetings and has the authority to conduct or authorise investigations into any matters
within its scope of responsibilities.

Having regard to the adequacy of the resources and experience of the auditing firm and the audit
engagement partner assigned to the audit, the firm's other audit engagements, the size and
complexity of the Group being audited, and the number and experience of supervisory and
professional staff assigned to the particular audit, the Board and the AC are of the opinion that a
suitable auditing firm has been appointed to meet the Group's auditing obligations. The Company
complies with Rules 712 and 715 of the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST.

The AC recommends to the Board the nomination of Emst & Young LLP for re-appointment as
external auditor at the forthcoming AGM of the Company.

Internal Audit

Principle 13: The Company should establish an effective internal audit function that is
adequately resourced and independent of the activities it audits.

The intemal auditor's primary line of reporting is to the AC Chairman although the internal auditor
would also report administratively to the Executive Chairman. The AC approves the hiring, removal,
evaluation and compensation of the head of the internal audit function, or the accounting/auditing
firm or corporation to which the internal audit function is outsourced. The internal auditor has
unfettered access to all the Group's documents, records, properties and personnel, including access
to the AC.

The AC also ensures that the internal audit function is adequately resourced and has appropriate
standing within the Group.

The internal audit function is staffed with persons with the relevant qualifications and experience and
carries out its function according to the standards set by nationally or internationally recognised
professional bodies including the Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing set by
the Institute of Internal Auditors.
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The Company has outsourced its internal audit function to an independent accounting and auditing
firm, Crowe Horwath First Trust Risk Advisory Pte. Ltd. (“*CHFTRA"). CHFTRA has conducted its
internal audit for the Group in FY2015 and reported directly to the AC on its findings. There were no
major internal control weaknesses highlighted by them for the attention of the AC for FY2015. The
AC has reviewed CHFTRA's report on internal controls and proc and is satisfied with the
adequacy of the same. The AC will annually assess and ensure the adequacy of the internal audit
function.

SHAREHOLDERS

Shareholder Rights

Companies should treat all shareholders fairly and equitably, and should
recognise, protect and facilitate the exercise of shareholders' rights, and
continually review and update such governance arrangements.

Principle 14:

The Company facilitates the exercise of ownership rights by all shareholders. In particular,
shareholders have the right to be sufficiently informed of changes in the Company or its business
which would be likely to materially affect the price or value of the Company's shares.

The Company ensures that shareholders have the opportunity to participate effectively in and vote
at general meetings of shareholders. Shareholders are informed of the rules, including voting
procedures, that govern general meetings of shareholders.

Whilst the Company currently does not allow corporations which provide nominee or custodial
services to appoint more than two (2) proxies so that shareholders who hold shares through such
corporations can attend and participate in general meetings as proxies, the Company has allowed
such shareholder(s) who hold shares through such corporation to attend its general meetings as
observer(s).

Communication with Shareholders

Companies should actively engage their shareholders and put in place an
investor relations policy to promote regular, effective and fair communication with
shareholders.

Principle 15;

In line with continuous disclosure obligations of the Company, pursuant to the SGX-ST's Listing
Rules and the Companies Act, the Board's policy is that shareholders are informed of all major
developments that impact the Group. The Company has an effective investor relations policy to
regularly convey pertinent information to shareholders. In disclosing information, the Company will
be as descriptive, detailed and forthcoming as possible and avoid boilerplate disclosures.

Information is communicated to shareholders on a timely basis through SGXNET and other
information channels, including a well-maintained and updated corporate website. Where there is
inadvertent disclosure made to a selected group, the Company will make the same disclosure
publicly as promptly as possible. The Board has established regular dialogue with shareholders, to
gather views or inputs, and address shareholders' concemns. Communication is made through:

(a) annual reports that are prepared and issued to all shareholders. The Board makes every
effort to ensure that the annual report includes all relevant information about the Group,
including future developments and other disclosures required by the Companies Act and
the relevant accounting standards;

(b) half-yearly financial statements containing a summary of the financial information and
affairs of the Group for the period;

(c) notices of and explanatory memoranda for AGMs and extraordinary general meetings;

d) press and analyst briefings for the Group’s half-yearly and annual results as well as
other briefings, as appropriate;

(E)

(e} press releases on major developments of the Group;

(f) disclosures to the SGX-ST; and
[{s)] the Group’s website at www.webgbt.com at which shareholders can access information on the

Group. The website provides, inter alia, products information and profile of the Group.

The Company does not have a fixed dividend policy. The form, frequency and amount of dividends will
depend on the Company's eamings, general financial condition, results of operations, capital requirements,
cash flow, general business condition, development plans and other factors as the Directors may deem
appropriate.

Conduct of Shareholder Meetings
Companies should encourage greater shareholder participation at general meetings of

the shareholders, and allow shareholders the opportunity to communicate their views
on various matters affecting the company.

Principle 16:

Shareholders have the opportunity to participate effectively in and to vote at general meetings of
shareholders to ensure a high level of accountability and to stay informed of the Group’s strategy and goals.
The Directors regard general meeting of the shareholders as an opportunity to communicated directly with
shareholders and encourage greater shareholder participation.

The notice of general meetings of shareholders is despatched to shareholders, together with explanatory
notes or a circular on items of special business, at least fourteen (14) days before the meeting. The Board
welcomes questions from shareholders who have an opportunity to raise issues either informally or formally
before or at the general meetings of shareholders. All Directors normally attend general meetings of
shareholders. The Chairmen of the AC, RC, and NC are normally available at the meeting to answer those
questions relating to the work of these Board Committees. The Company's external auditors will also be
present to assist the Directors in addressing queries by shareholders.

The Company prepares minutes of general meetings that include substantial and relevant comments or
queries from shareholders relating to the agenda of the meeting, and responses from the Board and
Management, and makes these minutes available to shareholders upon their request.

The Company puts all resolutions to vote by poll and make an announcement of the detailed results
showing the number of votes cast for and against each resolution and the respective percentages.

Each item of special business included in the notice of the meeting is accompanied, where appropriate, by
an explanation for the proposed resolution, Separate resolutions are proposed for substantially separate
issues at the meeting to avoid "bundling” resolutions unless the resolutions are interdependent and linked
so as to form one significant proposal.

DEALING IN SECURITIES
The Company adopts the following policies in relation to dealings in its securities:

(a) officers are not to deal in its securities during the period commencing one (1) month before the
announcement of the Group's half yearly financial statements and one (1) month before the
announcement of the Group’s financial statements for the full year, and ending on the date of the
announcement of the relevant results;

(b) in addition, the Company reminds its officers to observe the laws on insider trading at all times,
even when dealing in its securities within the permitted trading period; and

(c) the Company's internal compliance code requires that its officers shouid not deal in the
Company's securities on short term considerations.

The Board confirms that the Company has complied with Rule 1207(19) of the Listing Rules of the SGX-ST.
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MATERIAL CONTRACTS

There were no material contracts of the Company or its subsidiaries involving the interest of any Director
or controlling shareholders subsisting at the end of the reporting year ended 31 December 2015.

INTERESTED PERSON TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted an internal policy in respect of any transactions with interested person within
the definition of Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST and has established procedures to ensure
that all transactions with interested persons are reported in a timely manner to the AC and that the
transactions are carried out on normal commercial terms and will not be prejudicial to the interests of the
Company and its shareholders.

The Company has obtained a general mandate pursuant to Rule 920 of the Listing Manual in relation to
interested persons transactions during its AGM held on 21 April 2015. There were no interested person
transactions with a value of $$100,000 or more during FY2015.

Green Build Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries

Directors’ statement

The directors are pleased to present their statement to the members together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of Green Build Technology Limited (the "Company") and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the "Group") and the balance sheet of the Company for the financial year
ended 31 December 2015.

Opinion of the directors

In the opinion of the directors,

(i) the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the balance sheet of the Company are
drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the
Company as at 31 December 2015 and of the financial performance, changes in equity and

cash flows of the Group for the year ended on that date; and

(i)  atthe date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be
able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.

Directors

The directors of the Company in office at the date of this statement are:

Zhao Lizhi Executive Chairman

Wu Xueying Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
Li Mingyang Executive Director (appointed on 1 March 2018)
Kuan Cheng Tuck Independent Director

Yao Fengge Independent Director

In accordance with the Company's Articles of Association, Wu Xueying, Li Mingyang and Yao
Fengge retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Arrangements to enable directors to acquire shares and debentures

Meither at the end of nor at any time during the financial year was the Company a party to any
arrangement whose objects are, or one of whose object is, to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares or debentures of the Company or any other
body corporate.

Directors’ interests in shares and debentures

The following directors, who held office at the end of the financial year, had, according to the register
of directors' shareholdings, required to be kept under Section 164 of the Singapore Companies Act,
Chapter 50, an interest in shares of the Company and related corporations (other than wholly-owned
subsidiaries) as stated below:

Direct interest Deemed interest

At the At the
beginning of Atthe end of beginning of At the end of

Name of director financial year financial year financial year financial year

The Company
Ordinary shares
Zhao Lizhi - 67,518,111 157,518,111 30,000,000

Wu Xueying 8,360,000 - - 8,360,000
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Green Build Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries

Directors' statement

Directors' interests in shares and debentures (cont'd)

There was no change in any of the above-mentioned interests between the end of the financial year
and 21 January 20186.

Except as disclosed in this statement, no director who held office at the end of the financial year had
interests in shares, share options, warrants or debentures of the Company or of related corporations,
either at the beginning of the financial year, or date of appointment if later, or at the end of the
financial year.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee carried out its functions in accordance with section 201B(5) of the Singapore
Companies Act, Chapter 50, including the following:

. Reviewed the audit plans of the internal and external auditors of the Group and the Company,
and reviewed the internal auditor's evaluation of the adequacy of the Company’s system of
internal accounting controls and the assistance given by the Group and the Company's
management to the external and internal auditors;

Reviewed the half-yearly and annual financial statements and the independent auditor’'s report
on the annual financial statements of the Group and the Company before their submission to
the board of directors;

. Reviewed effectiveness of the Company's material internal controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management via reviews carried out by the
internal auditors;

Met with the external auditors, internal auditor, other committees, and management in separate
executive sessions to discuss any matters that these groups believe should be discussed
privately with the Audit Committee;

. Reviewed legal and regulatory matters that may have a material impact on the financial
statements, related compliance policies and programmes and any reports received from
regulators;

Reviewed the cost effectiveness and the independence and objectivity of the external auditors;

Reviewed the nature and extent of non-audit services provided by the external auditors;

. Recommended to the board of directors the external auditors to be nominated, approved the
compensation of the external auditors, and reviewed the scope and results of the audit;

Reported actions and minutes of the Audit Committee to the board of directors with such
recommendations as the Audit Committee considered appropriate; and

. Reviewed interested person transactions in accordance with the requirements of the Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited's Listing Manual.

The Audit Committee, having reviewed all non-audit services provided by the external auditors to the
Group, is satisfied that the nature and extent of such services would not affect the independence of
the external auditors. The Audit Committee has also conducted a review of interested person
transactions.

GREEN BUILD TECHNOLOGY | ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Green Build Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries

Directors’ statement

Audit Committee (cont'd)
The Audit Committee convened two meetings during the year with full attendance from all members.
The Audit Committee has also met with the internal and external auditors, without the presence of
the Company's management, at least once a year.

Further details regarding the Audit Committee are disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report, in
the Annual Report.

Auditors

Ernst & Young LLP have expressed their willingness to accept re-appointment as auditors.

On behalf of the board of directors,

Zhao Lizhi
Director

Wu Xueying
Director

Singapore
1 April 2018

JEEN BUILLD TECHNOLOGY | ANNUAL REFORT 2015

41



42

Green Build Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries

Independent auditor's report
For the financial year ended 31 December 2015

Independent auditor's report to the members of Green Build Technology Limited

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Green Build Technology Limited (the
"Company") and its subsidiaries (the "Group") set out on pages 44 to 113, which comprise the
balance sheets of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2015, the statements of
changes in equity of the Group and the consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and consolidated statement of cash flow of the Group for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the "Act") and
Singapore Financial Reporting Standards, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal
accounting controls sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded
against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that
they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair financial statements and to
maintain accountability of assets.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the balance sheet of the
Company are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Act and Singapore
Financial Reporting Standards so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group
and of the Company as at 31 December 2015 and of the financial performance, changes in equity,
and cash flows of the Group for the year ended on that date.

Green Build Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries

Independent auditor's report
For the financial year ended 31 December 2015

Independent auditor's report to the members of Green Build Technology Limited

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 2.1 to the financial statements. For the year ended 31 December 2015,
the Group's cash flow from operating activities is a net outflow of RMB 18.6 million. As at 31
December 2015, the Group has cash and cash equivalents of only RMB 0.6 million and loans and
borrowings of RMB 103.3 million. This indicates the existence of a material uncertainty which may
cast significant doubt about the Group's ability to continue as going concern. The Group's ability to
continue as going concern depends on continuing support from the Group's banker, the ability to
secure cash receipts from its ongoing projects and undertakings from related parties not to recall the
amounts due to them, until cash flows permit.

If the Group is unable to continue in operation existence for the foreseeable future, the Group may
be unable to discharge their liabilities in the normal course of business and adjustments may have to
be made to reflect the situation that assets may need to be realised other than in the normal course
of business and at amounts which could differ significantly from the amounts at which they are
currently recorded in the Group's balance sheets as at 31 December 2015. In addition, the Group
may have to reclassify non-current assets and liabilities as current assets and liabilities respectively.
Mo such adjustments have been made to these financial statements.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company and
by that subsidiary corporation incorporated in Singapore of which we are the auditors have been
properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

Ernst & Young LLP
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants
Singapore

1 April 2016
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Green Build Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries Green Build Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries

Consolidated income statement
For the financial year ended 31 December 2015 Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the financial year ended 31 December 2015

(In Chinese Renminbi) (In Chinese Renminbi)
Note 2015 2014 Note 2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(Restated) (Restated)
Continuing Operations Profit for the year 4,519 28,399
Revenue 3 90,828 30,549
Other comprehensive income:
Cost of sales (69,660) (23,659)
fterns that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Gross profit 21,168 6,890
Foreign currency translation, net 27 26 471
Other operating income 4 762 26,068 Realisation of foreign currency translation reserve upon
Administrative expenses (10,524) (6,986) disposal of subsidiaries 27 (1.171) T
Profit from continuing operations 11,406 25,972 Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year, net of
Interest expense on interest-bearing loans (5,740) M) tax (1,145) 47m
Bark charges (6) (1) s =
Total comprehensive income for the year 3,374 28,870
Profit before tax from continuing operations 5 5,660 25,964
Income tax expense 7 (3.544) (7,421) Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Profit from continuing operations, net of tax 2,116 18,543 Owners of the Company (3,544) 23,853
A ~ . Non-controlling interests 6,918 5,017
Discontinued Operations
Profit from discontinued operations, net of tax 29 2,403 9,856 3,374 28,870

Profit for the year 4,519 28,399

(Loss)/Profit_attributible to: Total comprehensive (loss)/income attributable to:

Owners of the Company

Owners of the Company
Total comprehensive income from continuing operations,

Profit from continuing operations, net of tax 2,116 18,543
(Loss )/Profit from discontinued operations, net of tax (4,515) 4,839 net of tax 2,142 19,014
Total comprehensive (loss }income from discontinued
(2,399) 23.382 operation, net of tax (5,686) 4,839
Non-controlling interests (3,544) 23,853
Profit from discontinued operations, net of tax 6,918 5017

Earnings per share from continuing operations
attributable to owners of the Company

- Basic and diluted (cents) 8 0.89 7.76
(Losses)/Earnings per share attributable to owners of the

Company
- Basic and diluted (cents) 8 (1.00) 9.79

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statemsnts.

financial statements.
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Green Build Technology Limited and its Subsidi

Balance sheets

As at 31 December 2015
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Green Build Technology Limited and its Sub

Ci lidated stat t of cash flow
For the fir ial year ended 31 D ber 2015

({In Chinese Renminbi)

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax from continuing operations
Profit before tax from discontinued operations
Profitbefore tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Amaortisation of land use rights
Amortisation of deferred expenditure
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries
Write-back for inventories obsolescence
Allowance for trade receivables
Interest expense
Interest income
Exchange differences

Operating profit before changes in working capital
Decrease in:
Deferred expenditure
Contract work-in-progress
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Prepayments
Increasef{decrease) in:
Trade and other payables
Other liabilities
Cash g ted from
Interest paid
Interest income received
Income tax paid
Net cash used in operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Purchase ofintangible assets
Purchase of available-for-sale investment
Met cash infiow on acquisition of subsidiaries
Met cash outflow upon disposal of subsidiaries

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Dividends paid by subsidiaries to minority shareholders
Repayment of finance lease obligations

Proceeds from bank borrowings

Repayment of bank borrowings

(Repayment ofyProceed from loan from corporate shareholder

(Repayment ofyProceed from loan from holding company
Proceed from advances from related parties

Proceed from advances from a shareholder

Proceed from advances from external parties
Decrease/(increase) in deposits pledged for bills payables
Decrease in amount due to holding company, non-trade

Decrease in amount due to corporate shareholder, non-trade

(Decrease)fincrease in amount due to a director
Decrease in amount due to related parties, non-trade
Net cash generated from financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Note 2016 2014
RMB'000 RMB000
5660 25064
4978 10,571
10,638 36,535
] 9,862 11,352
12 14 5
10 270 329
14 33 71
153) (18)
29 10,944 =
17 = (518)
18 1,113 103
8950 5240
(1.1686) (175)
(1,148) 441
39,459 53,365
= (202)
(414) (30,057)
(3,811) (2,578)
(39,502) (48,528)
(46,152) (3,140)
42791 37,181
(253) 1
(7.882) 6,052
(8,950) (5,240)
1,166 175
(2,928) (1.658)
(18,594) (671)
(2,340) (3,419)
149 43
12 - (5)
(18,450) =
= 77
29 (13,810) =
(34,451) (3,304)
= (4,566)
- (44)
149,000 179,560
(175,500) (173,340)
(5,165) 2,294
(2,113) 2113
61,293 -
940 -
36,505 =
9,646 (4,182)
(452) (19)
(25491) (51)
(787) 2,297
(300) (3,345)
47 666 717
(5,379) (3,258)
5988 9,246
20 608 5988

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial

statements.

Green Build Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
For the fi ial year ended 31 December 2015

{In Chinese Renminbi)

1.

2.1

Corporate information

Green Build Technology Limited (the "Company”) was incorporated on 6 February 2004 and is
domiciled in Singapore under the Companies Act, Chapter 50 as a private company limited by
shares under the name "Youcan Foods International Pte. Ltd.". On 6 October 2004, the
Company converted to a public limited company and changed its name to "Youcan Foods
International Limited". The Company is listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited. The name was changed from "Youcan Foods International Limited” to "Youyue
International Limited" with effect from 2 August 2012 and was further changed to its current
name with effect from 3 October 2014.

The registered office and principal place of business of the Company is located at 9 Temasek
Boulevard, #09-01, Suntec Tower Two, Singapore 038989,

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of the
subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 11 to the financial statements.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group and the balance sheet of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting Standards ("FRS").

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except as disclosed in
the accounting policies below.

The financial statements of the Group and the Company are presented in Chinese Renminbi
("RMB"} and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand ('000) except when otherwise
indicated.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group's cash flow from operating activities is a net
outflow of RMB 18.6 million. As at 31 December 2015, the Group has cash and cash
equivalents of only RMB 0.6 million and loans and borrowings of RMB 103.3 million. This
indicates the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the
Group's ability to continue as going concern. The Group's ability to continue as going concemn
depends on continuing support from the Group's banker, the ability to secure cash receipts from
its ongoing projects and undertakings from related parties not to recall the amounts due to
them, until cash flows permit.

If the Group is unable to continue in operation existence for the foreseeable future, the Group
may be unable to discharge their liabilities in the normal course of business and adjustments
may have to be made to reflect the situation that assets may need to be realised other than in
the normal course of business and at amounts which could differ significantly from the amounts
at which they are currently recorded in the Group's balance sheets as at 31 December 2015. In
addition, the Group may have to reclassify non-current assets and liabilities as current assets
and liabilities respectively. No such adjustments have been made to these financial statements.
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Green Build Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
For the fi ial year ended 31 D ber 2015

(In Chinese Renminbi)

2.

22

2.3

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)

Changes in accounting policies

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except in
the curmrent financial year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised standards which are
effective for annual financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015, The adoption of these
standards did not have any effect on the financial performance or position of the Group and the
Company.

Standards issued but not yet effective

The Group has not adopted the following standards applicable to the Group that have been issued

but not yet effective:
Effective for annual

periods beginning
Description on or after

FRS 114 Regulatory Deferral A 1 January 2016

Amendments to FRS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements

Amendments to FRS 16 and FRS 38 Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

1 January 2016

1 January 2016

Amendments to FRS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and
FRS 41 Agriculture: Bearer Plants

1 January 2016

Amendments to FRS 111 Accounting for Acguisitions of Interests in
Joint Operations

1 January 2016

Improvements to FRSs (November 2014)

(a) Amendments to FRS 105 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations

1 January 2016

(b} Amendments to FRS 107 Financial Instruments: Disdosures 1 January 2016
1 January 2016
1 January 2016

Amendments to FRS 110 & FRS 28: Sale or Contribution of Assets Date to be
between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture determined

1 January 2016
1 January 2016

{c) Amendments to FRS 19 Employee Benefits
(d) Amendments to FRS 34 Interim Financial Reporting

Amendments to FRS 1 Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to FRS 110, FRS 112 and FRS 28 Investment
Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception

Amendments to FRS 7: Disclosure Initiative 1 January 2017

Amendments to FRS 12 Recegnition of Defemed Tax Assets for 1 January 2017

Unrealised Losses

FRS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018

1 January 2018

Except for FRS 115 and FRS 109, the directors expect that the adoption of the other standards
above will have no material impact on the financial statements in the period of initial application. The
nature of the impending changes in accounting policy on adoption of FRS 115 and FRS 109 are
described below.

FRS 109 Financial Instruments

Green Build Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2015

(In Chinese Renminbi)

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)

Standards issued but not yet effective (cont'd)

FRS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

FRS 115 establishes a five-step model that will apply to revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under FRS 115, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.
The principles in FRS 115 provide a more structured approach to measuring and recognising
revenue when the promised goods and services are transferred to the customer i.e. when
performance obligations are satisfied.

Key issues for the Group include identifying performance obligations, accounting for contract
meodifications, applying the constraint to variable consideration, evaluating significant financing
components, measuring progress toward satisfaction of a performance obligation, recognising
contract cost assets and addressing disclosure requirements.

Either a full or modified retrospective application is required for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2018 with early adoption permitted. The Group is currently assessing the impact of
FRS 115 and plans to adopt the new standard on the required effective date.

FRS 109 Financial Instruments

FRS 109 introduces new requirements for classification and measurement of financial assets,
impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting. Financial assets are classified according to
their contractual cash flow characteristics and the business model under which they are held. The
impairment requirements in FRS 109 are based on an expected credit loss model and replace the
FRS 39 incurred loss model. Adopting the expected credit losses requirements will require the
Group to make changes to its current systems and processes.

FRS 1089 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with early application
permitted. Retrospective application is required, but comparative information is not compulsory.
The Group is currently assessing the impact of FRS 109 and plans to adopt the standard on the
required effective date.




Green Build Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries Green Build Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements Notes to the financial statements

For the financial year ended 31 December 2015 For the fi ial year ended 31 December 2015

(In Chinese Renminbi) (In Chinese Renminbi)

2.  Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd) 2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)

2.4 Significant accounting estimates and judgements 2.4 Significant accounting estimates and judgements (cont’d)
The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements requires management to make (a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (cont'd)

judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the end of each reporting period.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a
material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in the future periods.

(a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period are discussed below. The Group based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are
reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

(i) Construction contracts

The Group recognises contract revenue by reference to the stage of completion of the
contract activity at the end of each reporting period, when the outcome of a construction
contract can be estimated reliably. The stage of completion is measured by reference to
the proportion that contract costs incurred for work performed to date to the estimated total
contract costs.

Significant assumptions are required to estimate the total contract costs and the
recoverable variation works that affect the stage of completion. In making these estimates,
management has relied on past experience and knowledge of the project engineers,
Current year revenue related to the provision of green technology amounted to RMB
87,300,000 (2014: RMB 29,683,000).

The carrying amount of contract work-in-progress arising from construction contracts at the
end of the reporting period is disclosed in Note 16 to the financial statements. If the
estimated total contract cost had been 5% higher than management estimate, the carrying
amount of the assets arising from construction contracts and the net profit for the year
would have been approximately RMB 1,532,000 (2014: RMB 1,412,000) lower.

(i) Service concession arrangements

Where the Group performs more than one service under the concession arrangements, the
consideration for the services provided under the concession arrangements is allocated to
the components by reference to their relative fair values.

The Group recognises the consideration received or receivable as a financial asset to the
extent that it has an unconditional right to receive cash or another financial asset for the
construction services.

| BUILD TECHNOLOGY | ANNUAL REPORT 2015

(i) Service concession arrangements (cont'd)

The financial asset, which is measured at fair value upon initial recognition, represents
revenue recognised in relation to construction services which is determined using the
percentage of completion during the year. Significant assumptions are required to
estimate the total contract costs as disclosed in Note 2.4(a)(i). Subsequent to initial
recognition, the financial assets are measured at amortised cost.

Estimation is exercised in determining the fair values of the consideration for the
construction services which is dependent on the discount rates and other factors used.
The assumptions used and estimates made can materially affect the fair value
estimates. The carrying amount of the Group's financial receivables arising from
service concession arrangements at the balance sheet date is disclosed in Note 18 to
the financial statements.

(iii) Impairment of loans and receivables

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective
evidence that a financial asset is impaired. To determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment, the Group considers factors such as the probability of
insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor and default or significant
delay in payments.

Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the amount and timing of future cash
flows are estimated based on historical loss experience for assets with similar credit
risk characteristics. The carrying amount of the Group's loans and receivables at the
end of the reporting period is disclosed in Note 18 to the financial statements.

(iv)Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

The Group and the Company has tax losses carried forward of approximately RMB Nil
(2014: RMB 20,501,000). The Company and its subsidiaries have no temporary
taxable differences which could partly support the recognition of deferred tax assets.
Also, there is no tax planning opportunity available that would further provide a basis
for recognition. If the Group was able to recognise all unrecognised deferred tax
assets, the net profit for the year would increase by approximately RMB Nil (2014
RMB 3,485,000).
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Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2015

(In Chinese Renminbi)
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)

Significant accounting estimates and judgements (cont’d)

(a)

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (cont'd)

(vl Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations and the
amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the complexity of existing contractual
agreements, differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made,
or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax
provisions already recorded.

The Group establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible
consequences of audits by the tax authorities of the respective countries in which it
operates. The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as
experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the
taxable entity and the relevant tax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise
on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective
countries of the Group's domicile.

Judgements made in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the
following judgements which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the consolidated financial statements:

(i) Revenue recognition

Revenue recognition of the Group involves the application of judgement to the following:

1)  The identification and determination of percentage of completion of construction
contracts; and

2) The identification and determination of service concession arrangement.

The Group has recognised revenue amounting to RMB 87,300,000 (2014: 29,683,000)
from continuing operations for construction contracts.

During the year, the Group has also recognised revenue from the Underground Utility
Tunnel project and Insulation project for service concession arrangements amounting to
RMEB 37,356,000 and RMB 47,455,000 (2014: RME Nil and RMB Nil) respectively.

Revenue is presented net of business tax on the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Green Build Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements

For the fi

ial year ended 31 December 2015

(In Chinese Renminbi)
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)
Functional and foreign currency

Functional currency

The financial statements are presented in RMB. The functional currency of the Company is
Singapore Dollars (*SGD"). Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency.

(a) Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in the respective functional
currencies of the Company and its subsidiaries and are recorded on initial recognition
in the functional currencies at exchange rates approximating those ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the closing rate of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
MNon-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions.
MNon-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating
monetary items at the end of the reporting period are recognised in profit or loss.

(b) Consolidated financial statements

For consolidation purpose, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are
translated into RMB at the rate of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period
and their profit or loss are translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the
transactions. The exchange differences arising on the translation are recognised in
other comprehensive income. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of
other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised
in profit or loss.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)

Subsidiaries and basis of consolidation

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee that is controlled by the Group. The Group controls an investee
when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.

In the Company's separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment losses.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries as at the end of the reporting period. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are prepared for
the same reporting date as the Company. Consistent accounting policies are applied to like
transactions and events in similar circumstances.

All intra-group balances, income and expenses and unrealised gains and losses resulting from
intra-group transactions and dividends are eliminated in full.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling interest even if that results in a
deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for

as an equity transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

= De-recognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary at their
carrying amounts at the date when control is lost;

= De-recognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest;

- De-recognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;

- Recognises the fair value of the consideration received,

- Recognises the fair value of any investment retained;

- Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss;

® Re-classifies the Group's share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income to profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate.

Green Build Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2015

(In Chinese Renminbi)
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)

Subsidiaries and basis of consolidation (cont'd)

(c)

Business combinations and goodwill

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration which is deemed to be an asset or liability will be recognised in profit or
loss.

The Group elects for each individual business combination, whether non-controlling
interest in the acquiree (if any), that are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation, is recognised
on the acquisition date at fair value, or at the non-controlling interest's proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at their acquisition date fair value, unless another measurement
basis is required by another FRS.

Any excess of the sum of the fair value of the consideration transferred in the business
combination, the amount of non-controlling interest in the acquiree (if any), and the fair
value of the Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any), over the net
fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The
accounting policy for goodwill is set out in Note 2.10(a). In instances where the latter
amount exceeds the former, the excess is recognised as gain on bargain purchase in
profit or loss on the acquisition date.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost. Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is,
from the acquisition date, allocated to the Group's cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

The cash-generating units to which goodwill have been allocated is tested for
impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the cash-generating unit
may be impaired. Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable
amount of each cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)

Transactions with non-controlling interests

Mon-controlling interest represents the equity in subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly,
to owners of the Company.

Changes in the Company's ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
are accounted for as equity transactions. In such circumstances, the carrying amounts of the
controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interest is
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

Property, plant and equipment

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Subsequent to recognition,
property, plant and equipment other than freehold land and buildings are measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as
follows:

Building - 20 years
Plant and machinery - 10 years
Motor vehicles - 5 years

3to 5 years
over the lease term

Office equipment -
Office renovation -

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

The residual values, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year-end,
and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

An item of property, plant and equipment is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition
of the asset is included in profit or loss in the year the asset is de-recognised.

Green Build Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2015

(In Chinese Renminbi}
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)
Land use rights

Land use rights are initially measured at cost. Following initial recognition, land use rights are
measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
The land use rights are amortised on a straight-line basis over the lease term of 50 years.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured initially at cost. Following initial
acquisition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding
capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is reflected in profit or
loss in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised over the estimated useful lives and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method are reviewed at least at each
financial year-end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattem of
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing
the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting
estimates.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives or not yet available for use are tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently if the events and circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such
intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite
useful life is reviewed annually to determine whether the useful life assessment continues to
be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a
prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is de-recognised.

(a) Goodwill

Goodwill was acquired in business combinations. The useful life of goodwill is estimated
to be indefinite because management believes there is no foreseeable limit to the period
over which goodwill is expected to generate net cash inflows for the Group.

(b) Software

Software which relate to purchase of computer software is capitalised and amortised on
a straight-line basis over 3 to 5 years.
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2.1

2.12

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)

Deferred expenditure

Deferred expenditure are recorded at cost less any accumulated amortisation. The deferred
expenditure is amortised over the energy saving period of 7 years as provided for in the energy
management contracts as agreed with the customers.

The carrying values of deferred expenditure are reviewed for impairment when events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when an annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Group makes an estimate of the asset's recoverable amount.

An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's fair value less
costs of disposal and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in profit or loss, except for assets that
are previously revalued where the revaluation was taken to other comprehensive income. In this
case, the impairment is also recognised in other comprehensive income up to the amount of any
previous revaluation.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable
amount. That increase cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised previously. Such reversal is recognised in
profit or loss unless the asset is measured at revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated
as a revaluation increase.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)

Financial instruments

(a) Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognised when, and only when, the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the financial instrument. The Group determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in
the case of financial assets not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable
transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as
follows:

(i) Loans and receivables

MNon-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market are classified as loans and receivables. Subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss when the loans and receivables are de-recognised or impaired, and through
the amortisation process.

(i) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets include equity and debt securities. Equity
investments classified as available-for-sale are those, which are neither classified as
held for trading nor designated at fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities in
this category are those which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time
and which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in
the market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are subseguently
measured at fair value. Any gains or losses from changes in fair value of the financial
assets are recognised in other comprehensive income, except that impairment
losses, foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary instruments and interest
calculated using the effective interest method are recognised in profit or loss. The
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment when the
financial asset is de-recognised.

Investments in equity instruments whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are
measured at cost less impairment loss.
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2.14

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)
Financial instruments (cont'd)

(a) Financial assets {cont'd)

De-recognition

A financial asset is de-recognised where the contractual right to receive cash flows from the
asset has expired. On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between
the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and any cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.

(b} Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised when, and only when, the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the financial instrument. The Group determines the classification of
its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus in the case of financial liabilities
not at fair value through profit or loss, directly aftributable transaction costs.

Subseguent measurement

After initial recognition, financial liabilities that are not carried at fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are de-recognised, and through the
amortisation process.

De-recognition

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and bank balances that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.

Green Build Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2015

(In Chinese Renminbi)

215

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset is impaired.

(a) Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses whether objective
evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group determines that
no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be recognised are
not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets carried at amortised
cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial asset's original effective interest rate. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount
rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account. The impairment loss
is recognised in profit or loss.

When the asset becomes uncollectible, the carrying amount of impaired financial assets is
reduced directly or if an amount was charged to the allowance account, the amounts charged
to the allowance account are written off against the carrying value of the financial asset.

To determine whether there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets
has been incurred, the Group considers factors such as the probability of insolvency or
significant financial difficulties of the debtor and default or significant delay in payments.

If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed to the extent that the camying amount of the asset does
not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date. The amount of reversal is recognised in profit
or loss.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (cont'd)

(b)

(c)

Financial assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence (such as significant adverse changes in the business
environment where the issuer operates, probability of insolvency or significant financial
difficulties of the issuer) that an impairment loss on financial assets carried at cost has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses are not reversed in
subsequent periods.

Available-for-sale financial assels

In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, objective evidence of
impairment include (i) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor, (i) information
about significant changes with an adverse effect that have taken place in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment in which the issuer operates, and indicates that the
cost of the investment in equity instrument may not be recovered; and (iii) a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below its costs.

If an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, an amount comprising the difference
between its acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and amortisation) and its current
fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in profit or loss, is transferred from
other comprehensive income and recognised in profit or loss. Reversals of impairment losses
in respect of equity instruments are not recognised in profit or loss; increase in their fair value
after impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

Inthe case of debt instruments classified as available-for-sale, impairment is assessed based
on the same criteria as financial assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount
recorded for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the
amortised cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in profit or loss. Future interest income continues to be accrued based
on the reduced carrying amount of the asset, using the rate of interest used to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The interest income is
recorded as part of finance income. If, in a subsequent year, the fair value of a debt
instrument increases and the increases can be objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed in profit
or loss.
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2.18

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)
Contract revenue and contract costs
The Group principally operates fixed price contracts. Contract revenue and contract costs

are recognised as revenue and expenses respectively by reference to the stage of
completion of the contract activity at the end of the reporting period (the percentage of

completion method), when the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably (principally during
early stages of a contract), contract revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract
costs incurred that are likely to be recoverable and contract costs are recognised as
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

An expected loss on the construction contract is recognised as an expense immediately
when it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue.

In applying the percentage of completion method, revenue recognised corresponds to the
total contract revenue multiplied by the actual completion rate based on the proportion of
total contract costs incurred to date and the estimated costs to complete.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

. Raw materials — purchase costs on a first-in, first-out basis.
. Work-in-progress and —  costs of direct materials and labour and a proportion of
finished goods manufacturing overheads based on normal operating

capacity. These costs are assigned on a first-in, first-out
basis.

Where necessary, allowance is provided for damaged, obsolete and slow moving items to
adjust the camrying value of inventories to the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Met realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of a qualifying asset if they are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of that asset. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs commences when the activities to prepare the asset for its intended use or
sale are in progress and the expenditures and borrowing costs are incurred. Borrowing costs
are capitalised until the assets are substantially completed for their intended use or sale. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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2.19

2.20
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received less
directly attributable transaction costs.

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are de-recognised as well as
through the amortisation process.

Borrowing costs are generally expensed as incurred, except when they are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset (Note 2.18).

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and the amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle
the obligation, the provision is reversed. If the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks
specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage
of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Employee benefits
(a) Defined contribution plans

The Group participates in the national pension schemes as defined by the laws of the
countries in which it has operations. In particular, the Company makes contributions to the
Central Provident Fund scheme in Singapore, a defined contribution pension scheme.
Contributions to defined contribution pension schemes are recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related service is performed.

(b} Employee leave entitiement

Employee entittements to annual leave are recognised as a liability when they are accrued to
the employees. The undiscounted liability for leave expected to be settled wholly before twelve
months after the end of the reporting period is recognised for services rendered by employees
up to the end of the reporting period.

(c} Employee share option scheme

Employees (including senior executives) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of
share-based payment transactions, whereby employees render services as consideration for
share options (‘equity-settied transactions').
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)
Employee benefits (cont'd)

(c) Employee share option scheme (cont'd)

Equity-settled transactions

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair
value at the date on which the share options are granted which takes into account market
conditions and non-vesting conditions.

The cost of equity-settied transactions is recognised in profit or loss, together with a
corresponding increase in the employee share option reserve, over the vesting period. The
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group's best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to
profit or loss for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period,

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for awards where
vesting is conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as vested
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all
other performance and/or similar conditions are satisfied. In the case where the option does
not vest as the result of a failure to meet a non-vesting condition that is within the control of the
Group or the employee, it is accounted for as a cancellation. In such case, the amount of the
compensation cost that otherwise would be recognised over the remainder of the vesting
period is recognised immediately in profit or loss upon cancellation. The employee share
option reserve is transferred to retained earnings upon expiry of the share options. When the
options are exercised, the employee share option reserve is transferred to share capital if new
shares are issued, or to treasury shares if the options are satisfied by the reissuance of
treasury shares.

Leases
As lessee

Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of the leased item, are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the fair value of
the leased asset or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Any initial
direct costs are also added to the amount capitalised. Lease payments are apportioned
between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged to profit
or loss. Contingent rents, if any, are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are
incurred.

Capitalised leased are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the
asset and the lease term, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain
ownership by the end of the lease term.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. The aggregate benefit of incentives provided by the lessor is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd) 2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)
223  Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations 225 Government grants

Mon-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at the
lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Non-current assets and
disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. A component of
the Group is classified as a 'discontinued operation’ when the criteria to be classified as held
for sale have been met or it has been disposed of and such a component represents a
separate major line of business or geographical area of operations or is part of a single
coordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical area of
operations.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets once classified as held for sale are not
depreciated or amortised.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the
payment is made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or
receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding
taxes or duty.

(a) Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised upon the transfer of significant risk and
rewards of ownership of the goods to the customer, usually on delivery of goods.
Revenue is not recognised to the extent where there are significant uncertainties
regarding recovery of the consideration due, associated costs or the possible return of
goods.

(b) Contract revenue

Revenue from the provision of green technology services and construction of related
installation is recognised by reference to the stage of completion at the end of the
reporting period. Details of the accounting policy are disclosed in Note 2.16.

{c) Revenue from service concession arrangements

In respect of revenue from service concession arrangements, revenue is recognised in
accordance with Mote 2.29. Revenue from service concession arrangements is
recognised when the Group's right to receive payment is established. Revenue
recognised will be apportioned among:

(i) A repayment of the financial receivable, which will be used to reduce the carrying
amount of the financial receivable on its balance sheet;

(ii) Interest income, which will be recognised as finance income in profit or loss; and

{iiiy  Revenue from operating and maintaining the plants recognised in profit or loss.

(d) Interest income
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

EN BUILD TECHNOLOGY | ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. Where the grants relates to
an expense item, it is recognised in profit or loss over the period necessary to match them
on a systematic basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate. Where the grant relates
to an asset, the fair value is recognised as deferred capital grant on the balance sheet and
is amortised to profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments.

Taxes
(a) Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured
at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, in the countries where the
Group operates and generates taxable income.

Current income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that the tax
relates to items recognised outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation
and establishes provisions where appropriate.

(b) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the end of
the reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences, except:

- Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

- In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)
Taxes (cont'd)

(b) Deferred tax (cont'd)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised except:

e Where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

# In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in comrelation to the underlying transaction either in

other comprehensive income or directly in equity and deferred tax arising from a business
combination is adjusted against goodwill on acquisition.

(c) Value added tax ("VAT")
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of VAT except:
- Where the VAT incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority, in which case the VAT is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition

of the asset or as part of the expense item as applicable; and

- Receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of VAT included.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)
Share capital and share issue expenses

Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares are recognised as share capital in equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issuance of ordinary shares are deducted against share capital.

Contingencies
A contingent liability is:

(a) a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group; or

(b) a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because:

(i} Itis not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation; or

(ii) The amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Group.

Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognised on the balance sheet of the Group, except for
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination that are present obligations and which the
fair values can be reliably determined.

Service concession arrangements

The Group recognises revenue in accordance with its accounting policy set out in Note 2.24(c).
Where the Group performs more than one service under the arrangement, consideration received
or receivable are allocated to the components by reference to the relative fair values of the services
delivered, when the amounts are separately identifiable.

The Group recognises the consideration received or receivable as a financial asset to the extent
that it has an unconditional right to receive cash or another financial asset for the construction
services. Financial assets are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
MNote 2.13(a).

Repair and maintenance and other expenses that are routine in nature are expensed and
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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3. Revenue 5. Profit before tax from continuing operations
& Profit before tax from continuing operations is arrived at after charging the following:
roup
2015 2014 Group
RMB'000 RMB'000 Note 2015 2014
(Restated) RMB'000 RMB'000
{Restated)
Sales of goods 3,528 866
Contract revenue 87,300 29,683 Directors' remuneration 252 249
90,828 30,549 Directors’ fees 555 486
Other staff costs 2,437 1,147
4. Other operating income Staff costs 6 3,244 1,882
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 562 78
Group Amortisation of intangible assets 2 =
2015 2014 Amortisation of deferred expenditure 14 33 71
RMB'000 RMB'000 Operating lease expenses 32 650 896
(Restated) Foreign exchange loss, net 1,007 526
Audit fees:
Govemment grants 1 26,084 - auditors of the Company 1,279 1,234
Interest income from bank balances 743 3 Nob-audif faas:
Others 18 1 - auditors of the Company 53 53
762 26,068
6. Staff costs
Group
2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB'000
(Restated)
Salaries and bonuses 2,853 1,780
Contributions to defined contribution plans sk 102
3,244 1,882
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7. Income tax
Group 7. Income tax (cont’d)
Note 2015 2014 Management believes they are able to enjoy tax concessions on certain projects. However, the
RMB'000 RMB'000 actual business tax and income tax payable on the PPP projects income is generally determined

and agreed with the relevant tax authorities in China, which might be different from the business tax

‘ (Restated) and income tax provisions made in the financial statements. Provision for tax has been made as
Current income tax such concessions are subject to the relevant authorities' approval which has not been obtained as
- current year income taxation 2,926 8,148 at the date of the financial statements.
- under/{over) provision in respect of previous years 618 (727) .
8. Earnings per share
Income tax attributable to continuing operations 3,544 7.421 .7 _
From continuing operations
Income tax attributable to discontinued operations 20 2,575 715 Basic eamings per share from continuing operations are calculated by dividing profit from
continuing operations, net of tax, attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average
6,119 8,136 number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year.
Relationship between tax exp and ting profit Diiutled‘ eamings per share from cpntinuing operations are calculated by diyidil_'ng prﬂflt from
o ) L continuing operations, net of tax, attributable to owners of the Company (after adjusting for interest
A reconciliation between the tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by the expense on convertible redeemable preference shares) by the weighted average number of
applicable tax rates for the financial years ended 31 December was as follows: ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year plus the weighted average number of ordinary
Group shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into
2016 2014 ordinary shares.
RMB'000 RMB'000 The following tables reflect the profit and share data used in the computation of basic and diluted
(Restated) eamings per share for the years ended 31 December:
Profit before income tax:
Continuing operations 5,660 25,964 Group
Discontinued operations 29 15,922 10,571 2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB'000
21,582 36,535 (Restated)
- — — — W Net profit from continuing operations attributable to owners of
ax a e gomeslic rates applicable to profits in the
countries concerned 4119 9,531 the Company_ ) 216 16,543
Adjustimerts: Net (loss ) profit attributable to owners of the Company (2,399) 23,382
Income not subject to taxation (2,102) (1,671)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax No. of shares
purposes 1,592 152 2015 2014
Deferred tax asset not recognised in current year 1,892 934 ‘000 ‘000
Under/(Over) provision in respect of prior year 618 (727) X 3 y
Gihers _ (83) Weighted average number of ordinary shares on issue
applicable to basic earnings per share 238,880 238,860
Income tax expense 6,119 8,136
(&) Thes 2 S . Adjusted weighted average number of ordinary shares
a he Singapore corporate income tax rate applicable to the Company is 17% (2014: 17%). : : ;
; ; : : . applicable to diluted eamnings per share 238,860 238,860
(b) There is no income tax expense for the Company as the Company is an investment holding PR gsp
company and is in a tax loss position.
(c) The above reconciliation is prepared by aggregating separate reconciliations for each national Since the end of the year, there are no options granted to acquire ordinary shares in the share
Jurisdiction. capital of the Company.
Companies in the People's Republic of China ("PRC") are subject to PRC corporate income tax ) ) ) ) ) ) )
("CIT") rate of 25% (2014: 25%). Certain subsidiaries in PRC enjoy concessionary tax rates due to There have been no other transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ardinary shares since

tax incentive schemes. the reporting date and before the completion of these financial statements.
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At 1 January 2014
Charge for the year

Written off

(462)

(462)

(1)
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Net exchange differences

43

At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015

Charge for the year

Written off

(44)
(1)
1

(44)
(1
1

Net exchange differences
At 31 December 2015
Net carrying amount:

At 31 December 2015

At 31 December 2014
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Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2015

(In Chinese Renminbi}

Green Build Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2015

(In Chinese Renminbi)

Land use rights
Group
2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB'000

Cost:

At 1 January 15,043 15,043
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 29) (15,043) -
At 31 December oo 15,043

Accumulated amortisation:

At 1 January 2,303 1,974
Amortisation for the year 270 329
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 29) (2,573) -
At 31 December = 2,303
Net camying amount - 12,740

Amount to be amortised:

- Not later than one year - 329
- Later than one year but not later than five years - 1,316
- Later than five years - 11,095

- 12,740

Land use rights are held by the subsidiaries which are disposed of during the year. This pertained
to land use rights over two plots of state-owned land in the People's Republic of China ("PRC")
where a certain subsidiary's manufacturing activities currently reside. The land use rights
represented prepaid land premiums and are transferable.

The remaining tenures of the land use rights as at 31 December 2014 are as follows:

No. 88 Ding Qiao Zhen Bao Lu ("Plot 1") — 39 years
Xin Cang Xiang Min Lian Chun ("Plot 2") — 3B years

As at 31 December 2014, the Group has not obtained land use certificates for Plot 2 which has a
net carrying amount of approximately RMB 1,519,000.

The amortisation of land use rights is included in the administrative expenses line item in the
income statement.

Assets pledged as security
As at 31 December 2014, the net carrying amount of land use rights pledged as security for
interest-bearing bank loans granted to the Group amounted to RMB 11,211,000.

Investment in subsidiaries

Unguoted equity shares, at cost
Exchange differences on translation

Camying value of investment

(a) Composition of the Group

The details of the subsidiaries are as follows:

Name of company (Country  Principal activities
(place of business)

of incorporation)

Held by the Company

(&1

{"GBTI") {f k.a WYW (Singapore)
Capital Pte Ltd)

Singapore
2} Yourun Packaging Research and

Technology (Hangzhou) development on

Co., Ltd. packaging

{"Hangzhou Yourun") # technology,
packaging design

People's Republic of China and packaging
technology
consultancy

(People's Republic

of China)

GBT Investments Pte. Ltd.  Investment holding

Company
2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB'000

- 8,714
- (287)

= 8,427

Percentage

of equity

Costof investment  held by the

by the Company Group

2015 2014 2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB'000 % %

=" - 100 100

8,714 - 100
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Notes to the financial statements
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(In Chinese Renminbi}

1. Investment in subsidiaries (cont’d)

(a) Composition of the Group(cont'd)

Green Build Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2015

(In Chinese Renminbi)

1. Investment in subsidiaries

(a) Composition of the Group(cont'd)

of incorporation)

Percentage

of equity

Name of company (Country  Principal activities  Costof investment  held by the
(place of t ) by the Company Group

2015 2014 2015 2014

Held through subsidiaries

{2

Harbin Supenor
Construction Materials
Trading Co, Ltd @

People's Republic of China

02

Harbin Shengming
Energy Saving and
Technology Co., Ltd.
(*Harbin Shengming")
(f.k.a Harbin Promlite
Energy Saving
Technology Co., Ltd.)

People's Republic of
China

{2

Harbin Utilities Tunnel
Construction and
Management Co., Ltd
("*HUTCAM") @

People's Republic of
China

[

Harbin Prevailing
Municipal Engineering
Co., Ltd (*HPME") @

People's Republic of
China

RMB'O00 RMBOOD % %o

Trading of - - 100 =
construction

materials

(People's Republic

of China)

Energy conservation - - 100 100
services and

installation of green

technology and

architecture

(People's Republic

of China)

Construction, - - 100 -
operation and

management of

projects

(People's Republic

of China)

The provision of - - 100 -
architectural design
and construction
searvices for
govemment
projects, promotion
of energy
conservation and
investment in
construction
business

(People's Republic
of China)

Name of company

(Country of Principal activities
incorporation) (place of business)
Held through subsidiaries

{2

Yue Hai Colour
Printing and

Packaging Co., Ltd.

("Yue Hai"} ¥

People's Republic
of China

2

Jia Hua Packaging
and Printing Co.,
Ltd.

("Jia Hua") *

People's Republic
of China

Manufacturing and sale of
flexible packaging
products

(People's Republic of
China)

Manufacturing and sale of
flexible packaging
products
(People's Republic of
China)

(1) Audited by Ernst & Young LLP, Singapore.
(2) Audited by member firms of EY Global in China for the purposes of consolidation.

Less than RMB1,000.

Percentage

of equity

Cost of investment held by the
by the Company Group
2015 2014 2015 2014

RMB'00O0 RMB0O0D % %

- 8714

#  Hangzhou Yourun, Yue Hai and Jia Hua were disposed of during the financial year (Note 29).
@ Incorporated during the year.

(b) Interest in subsidiaries with material non-controlling interest (“NCI")

Profit Accumulated
Proportion allocatedto  NCI at the

of NCl during  end of the
Nameof  Principal place of ownership the reporting reporting Dividends
company business held by NCI period period paidto NCI
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
31 December 2014:
Yue Hai People's 49 5,017 55,892 4,566

and Jia Republic of

Hua China

(1) Yue Hai and Jia Hua are analysed as a group as they are in the same line of business and their
business and activities are integral to each other.

There is no interest in subsidiaries with material NCI as at 31 December 2015.
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Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2015

(In Chinese Renminbi}

1.

Investment in subsidiaries (cont’d)

(b)

(c)

Interest in subsidiaries with material non-controlling interest (“NCI”) (cont'd)

Significant restriction

Yue Hai and Jia Hua

The nature and extent of significant restrictions on the ability to use or access assets and
settle liabilities of subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests are that cash and cash
equivalents of RMB 13,887,000 held in People's Republic of China are subject to local
exchange control regulations. These regulations places restriction on the amount of currency
being exported other than through dividends.

Acquisition of subsidiaries

On 12 June 2014, the Company acquired 100% stake in GBTI which in turn owned 100% in
Harbin Shengming (the “New Subsidiaries”) for a nominal consideration of S$1.

The Group has acquired the New Subsidiaries to provide alternative revenue streams to the
Group and improve its profitability. The Group intends to utilise Harbin Shengming as a
vehicle to undertake project-based activities involving energy conservation services and
sustainable developments.

The balance sheet and major classes of assets and liabilities of the New Subsidiaries as at
the date of acquisition are as follows:

Fair value
recogni
on
acquisition
2014
RMB'000
Property, plant and equipment B57
Defered expenditure 298
Inventories 299
Trade and other receivables 608
Cash and cash equivalents 77
139
Trade and other payables (2,711)
Due to holding company, non-trade 471)
(3,182)
Total identifiable net liabilities at fair value (1,043)
Total consideration paid =,
Effects of exchange rate differences (29)
Goodwill on acquisiion ofthe New Subsidiaries {1,072)
Total consideration paid =
Cash and cash equivalents of the acquired New
Subsidiaries 77
Net cash inflow on acquisition of the New Subsidiaries 77

* Less than RMB1,000

The purchase price allocation of the acquisition of Harbin Shengming was finalised during the
year. There was no adjustment made to the provisional fair value originally recorded in the
prior year following the completion of the final purchase price allocation.

Green Build Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2015

(In Chinese Renminbi)

12. Intangible assets

Note
Group
Cost:
At 1 January 2014
Additions
Acquisition of subsidiaries 1

At 31 December 2014 and
1 January 2015
Disposal of subsidianes

At 31 December 2015

Amortisation:

At 1 January 2014
Amortisation for the year

At 31 December 2014 and
1 January 2015

Amortisation for the year

Disposal of subsidiaries

At 31 December 2015

Net carmrying amount:
At 31 December 2015

At 31 December 2014

Amortisation expense

The amortisation of customer relationships and software are included in the administrative

Customer

Goodwill relationship Software Total
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMBE'000
- 2,700 269 2,969
- - 5 5
1,072 - - 1,072
1,072 2,700 274 4,046
- (2,700) (269) (2,969)
1,072 - 5 1,077
- 2,700 252 2,952
- - 5 5
- 2,700 257 2,957
- - 14 14
- (2,700) (269) (2,969)
= = 2 2
1,072 - 3 1,075
1,072 - 17 1,089

expenses line item in the income statement.

The remaining useful lives are as follows:

Software 2to5years (2014: 2 to5 years)
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Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2015

(In Chinese Renminbi}

13.

14.

Other investments

Group
2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB'000
Non-current:
Available-for-sale investments
- Equity instruments (unquoted), at cost - 996

The ungquoted equity instrument is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses because
there are no quoted market prices for such equity investment. In addition, the variability in the
range of reasonable fair value estimates is significant and the probabilities of the various estimates
cannot be reasonably assessed. Accordingly a reasonable estimate of the fair value cannot be
made.

Deferred expenditure

Group

RMB'000
Cost:
At 1 January 2014 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries 298
Additions 202
At 31 December 2014, 1 January 2015 and 31 December 2015 500
Amortisation:
At 1 January 2014 -
Amortisation for the year 71
At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 71
Amortisation for the year 33
At 31 December 2015 104
Net carrying amount:
At 31 December 2015 396

At 31 December 2014 429

Deferred expenditure relates to expenditure incurred on the Group's project-based activities
involving upgrading existing infrastructure with the installation of green technology and architecture
and are transferred from contract work-in-progress after completion of the project and
commencement of the period for the sharing of the proceeds derived from the energy saved after
installation of the green technology and architecture.

Green Build Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2015

(In Chinese Renminbi)

14.

15.

Deferred expenditure (cont'd)

Amortisation expense

The amortisation of deferred expenditure is included in the administrative expenses line item in the
income statement and has a remaining useful life of 5 years (2014: 6 years).

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

Deferred income tax as at 31 December relates to the following:

Group
Consolidated statement
Consolidated of comprehensive
balance sheet income
2015 2014 2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(Restated)
Deferred tax assets:
Allowances for trade
receivables and inventory
obsolescence - 322 - .
Unutilised tax losses - 406 - -
- 728 - -
Deferred tax liabilities:
Fair value adjustments on
acquisition of subsidiaries - {2,817) - -

Net deferred income tax
expense - -

Unrecognised tax losses and deductible temporary differences

The Company has tax losses of approximately RMB Nil (2014: RMB 20,510,000) that are available
for offset against future taxable profits of the Company in which the losses arose, for which no
deferred tax asset is recognised due to the uncertainty of its recoverability. The use of tax losses is
subject to the agreement of the tax authorities and compliance with certain provisions of the tax
legislation in which the Company operates.

At the end of the reporting period, no deferred tax liability has been recognised for taxes that would
be payable on the undistributed earnings of the Group's subsidiaries as the Group has determined
that undistributed earnings of its subsidiaries will not be distributed in the foreseeable future. Such
temporary difference for which no deferred tax liability has been recognised aggregate to RMB
34,166,000 (2014: RMB 61,529,000). The deferred tax liability is estimated to be RMB 3,417,600
(2014: RMB 6,153,000).
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Green Build Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2015

{In Chinese Renminbi)

16. Contract work-in-progress

Aggregate amount of costs incurred to date
Attributable profits (less recognised losses) to date

Presented as:
Gross amount due from customers for contract
work-in-progress

17. Inventories

Balance sheet

Raw materials
Work-in-progress
Finished goods

Total inventories at lower of cost and net realisable value

Consolidated income statement

Inventories recognised as an expense in cost of sales
Inclusive of the following credit:

- Write-back for inventory obsolescence

Write-back for allowance for inventory obsolescence was made when the related inventories were

sold above their carrying amounts.

Group
2015 2014
RMB'000  RMB'000
25,750 23,453
6,605 6,604
32,355 30,057
32,355 30,057
Group
2015 2014
RMB'000  RMB'000
- 13,804
- 2,779
779 10,125
779 26,708
174,836 221,567
- (518)

Green Build Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2015

(In Chinese Renminbi)

18. Trade and other receivables

Group
Note 2015 2014
RME'000 RMB'000

Trade receivables

Third parties 4,131 84,049
Service concession

receivables 30 B7.733 -
Bills receivables - 31,299
Less: Allowance for trade

receivables

(non-related parties) - (2,066)

Company
2015 2014
RMBE'000 RMBE'000

91,864 113,282
Due from related parties,
trade - 5,571

91,864 118,853

Other receivables

Due from holding company,

non-rade - 19 - 19

Due from corporate

shareholder, non-trade - 183 193

Due from subsidiaries,

non-trade - - 68 -

- 212 68 212

Govemment grant

receivables 8,000 16,632 - -

Receivables from the

disposal of subsidiaries 25,040 - 25,040 -

Other receivables 757 17,025 90 -

Refundable deposits 822 787 21 38
34,619 34,656 25219 250

Total trade and other

receivables 126,483 153,509 25,219 250

Add: Cash and cash

equivalents 20 609 5,988 197 114

Add: Pledged deposits 20 - 9 646 - -

Total loans and receivables 127,002 169,143 25418 364
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Green Build Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2015

(In Chinese Renminbi)

18.

Trade and other receivables (cont'd)

Trade receivables

Trade receivables from third parties and related parties are recognised at their original invoice
amounts which represent their fair values on initial recognition and are non-interest bearing. The
credit period is generally for a period of two months, and may extend to three months for key
customers. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and has a
credit control policy to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by senior
management.

For the years ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, trade receivables of the Group
are denominated in RMB.

Bills receivables

These receivables as at 31 December 2014 are non-interest bearing and have an average maturity
of 6 months.

The carmrying amount of bills receivables pledged as security for interest-bearing bank loans
granted to the Group amounted to RMB Nil (2014: RMB 20,684,000) (MNote 24).

Due from holding company/corporate shareholder/subsidiaries, non-trade

These balances are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable within the next twelve months.

Government grant receivables

Government grant receivables are from the local governments for the green technology service
projects undertaken by the subsidiaries.

Other receivables

As at 31 December 2014, other receivables mainly consisted of wealth management products that
matured daily and had an annual interest of 3.8%. This belonged to the subsidiaries which are
disposed during the year.

Receivables from the disposal of subsidiaries

The Group's receivables from the disposal of subsidiaries and other payables due to the purchaser
that are offset are as follows:
Group

RMB'000

Gross

amounts  Net amounts

Gross offset in the in the
carrying balance balance
amounts sheet sheet

Description
Other receivables 38,950 (13,910) 25,040
Other payables (13,910) 13,910 -

Green Build Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2015

(In Chinese Renminbi)

18.

Trade and other receivables (cont'd)

Receivables that are past due but not impaired

The Group has trade receivables (including related parties) amounting to RMB Nil (2014: RMB
36,895,000) that are past due at the end of the reporting period but not impaired. These receivables
are unsecured and the analysis of their aging at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
Group
2015 2014
RMB'000  RMB'000

Trade receivables past due but not impaired:

- Less than 90 days - 27,848
- 90 to 360 days - 9,047
- 36,895

These trade receivables are not impaired as there were either subsequent receipts or they relate to
customers with good credit history.

Receivables that are impaired

The Group has trade receivables that are individually impaired as at the end of the reparting period
and the movement of the allowance accounts used to record the impairment are as follows:
Group

Individually impaired
2015 2014
RMB'000  RMB'000

Trade receivables — nominal amounts - 2,066
Less: Allowance for impairment - (2,066)

Movement in allowance accounts:

At beginning of the year (2,0686) (1,963)
Charge for the year attributable to discontinued operations (1,113) (103)
Disposal of subsidiaries 3,179 -
At end of the year - {2,066)

Trade receivables that are individually determined to be impaired at the end of the reporting period
relate to debtors that are in significant financial difficulties and have defaulted on payments. These
receivables are not secured by any collateral or credit enhancements.

Naone of the above amounts relate to balances with related parties.
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Green Build Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
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(In Chinese Renminbi)

19. Prepayments
Group Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Non-current
Prepayments for property, plant
and equipment - 1,413 - -
Current
Prepaid operating expenses 1,256 3,321 1 12
Advance payment to
sub-contractors 48,217 - - -
49,473 3,321 1" 12
20. Cash and cash equivalents
Group Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Cash and cash equivalents 609 5,988 197 114
Pledged deposits - 9,646 - -
609 15,634 197 114

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has pledged deposits amounting to RMB Nil (2014: RMB

9,646,000) for bills payables.

21.

Trade and other payables

Note

Trade payables (current)
Third parties

Bills payables

A related party

Other payables (current) 22

Due to a director,
non-trade

Due to holding company,
non-trade

Due to a related party ofa
corporate shareholder,
non-trade

Due to related parties,
non-trade

Due to a subsidiary,
non-trade

Trade and other
payables (current)

Add: loans and

borrowings

24

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise the
RMB 609,000 (2014: RMB 5,988,000) cash at bank and on hand, excluding pledged deposits.

Cash and cash equivalents denominated in foreign currencies at 31 December are as follows:

Group Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Singapore dollars 250 102 182 102
United States dollars 15 12 15 12

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances
are deposits with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. The carrying amounts of the
cash and cash equivalents approximate their fair values.

Total financial liabilities
carried at amortised cost

Trade payables

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 60-day terms. Trade payables

Group Company

2015 2014 2015 2014
RMB'000 RME'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
38,008 54,780 - -
=5 24,502 - ==
- 1,595 - -
38,006 80,877 - -
17,621 13,744 2,002 967
1,510 2,297 - -
- 471 - -
- 25,684 - 6,716
= 300 = =
= == 294 =
57,137 123,373 2,296 7,683
103,316 90,666 16,372 11,766
160,453 214,039 18,668 19,449

of the Group are primarily denominated in RMB.

Bills payables

Bills payables are non-interest bearing and are payable in 6 months as at 31 December 2014. Bills

payables are secured by time deposit of RMB Nil (2014: RMB 9,646,000) (Note 20).

Amounts due to a director, holding company and related parties, non-trade
These balances are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.
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22.  Other payables, current

Group Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Other payables 15,117 11,066 1,094 216
Accrued operating expenses 2,504 2,678 908 751
17,621 13,744 2,002 967
23.  Other liabilities
Group
2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB'000
Advance payments from customers - 253
24. Loans and borrowings Group Company
Maturity 2015 2014 2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Current:
Loan from corporate
shareholder [Note (a)] 20186 - 5,165 - 5,165
Loan from related
parties [Note (a)] 2016 65,781 4,488 4,777 4,488
Loan from holding
company [Note (a)] 2016 - 2113 - 2,113
Loan from a
shareholder 2018 940 - - -
Loan from extemal
parties [Note (b)] 20186 36,595 - 11,585 -
Bank loans:
- secured by bills
receivable [Note (c)] 2015 - 7,800 - -
- secured by property,
plant and equipment
and land use rights
[Note (d)] 2015 - 42,700 - -
- secured by guarantees
[Note (e]] 2015 - 28,300 - -
103,316 90,666 16,372 11,766

Green Build Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2015

(In Chinese Renminbi}
24, Loans and borrowings (cont'd)

(a) The loans from holding company, corporate shareholder, related parties, individual
shareholder and external parties are interest-free, unsecured and repayable on demand.

(b} Anamount of RMB 11.6 million in current year was reclassified from “loans from a related party
of a corporate shareholder” and "Loan from corporate shareholder" in FY2014 to “loans from
external parties” as the lenders are no longer considered as related parties to the Group since
October 2015. This loan now bears interest at 15.37% per annum from 1 June 2014 to 31
December 2015; the principal and the interest of which will be offset against the consideration
receivable arising from the disposal of the packaging business subsequent to year end. The
remaining balance of RMB 25.0 million relates to loans and advances from external parties,
which is unsecured and interest free.

Bank loans

(c) The interest-bearing loan of RMB 7.9 million as at 31 December 2014 was secured by bills
receivable and bears interest at 5.88% per annum.

(d) The bank loan of RMB 42.7 million as at 31 December 2014 was secured by property, plant
and machinery and land use rights and bore interest at 5.60% to 6.72% per annum.

(e) The interest-bearing loan of RMB 28.3 million as at 31 December 2014 bore interest at 5.60%
to 6.90% per annum and was secured by guarantees from ex-related parties (Note 31(c)).

25, Share capital

Group and Company

2015 2014
S$'000 RMB '000 S$'000 RMB '000
(equivalent) (equivalent)
Issued and fully paid:
At beginning and end of the year
- 238,858,796 ordinary shares 22,851 113,179 22,851 113,179

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by the
Company. All ordinary shares carry one vote per share without restriction. The ordinary shares have
no par value,
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Restricted reserves Group 27. Foreign currency translation reserve
2015 2014 Group Company
RMB'000 RMB'000 2015 2014 2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Reserve funds
Atbeginning of the year 3,075 3,018 At beginning of the year 2,11 1,640 910 631
Transferred from revenue reserves - 57 Net effect of translation
Transferred upon disposal of subsidiaries (3,075) - differences 26 471 10 279
Atend ofthe year _ 3.075 Realisation of foreign currency
translation upon disposal of
subsidiaries (1,171) = = =
Enterprise expansion funds
Atbeginning of the year 1,439 1.439 At end of the year 966 2,111 a20 910
Transferred upon disposal of subsidiaries (1,439) - The foreign currency translation reserve pertains to exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of the Company whose functional currency is SGD to the
Atend ofthe year = 1,439 Group's presentation currency of RMB,
Capital reserve 28. Accumulated losses
At beginning of th 3,018 3,018 Sompsny
Re ?9':'““90 ::IE'!‘”Mr | of subsidiari 3(l118 ' 2038 2038
alisation upon disposal of subsidiaries (3,018) = RMB'000  RMB'000
Atend of the year - 3,018
At beginning of the year (124,732)  (119,770)
. _ 7532 Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 17,399 (4,962)
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for enterprises operating with only foreign capital in Atend of the year (107,333)  (124,732)
the PRC, profits of the PRC subsidiaries of the Group are available for distribution in the form of
cash dividends to the investors after the Group has (1) satisfied all tax liabilities; (2) provided for 29. Discontinued operations

losses in previous years and (3) made appropriations to statutory reserve funds, including reserve
fund, enterprise expansion fund, capital reserve and staff bonus and welfare fund ("SBWF"). The
Group is required to appropriate not less than 10% of its annual profit after tax, as determined in
accordance with the PRC accounting standards and regulations applicable to the Group, to the
reserve fund until the reserve fund reaches 50% of the registered capital. Appropriation to the
enterprise expansion fund and SBWF is determined at the discretion of the board of directors.

The enterprise expansion and reserve funds are not free for distribution as dividends. The reserve
fund can be used either to offset accumulated losses or be capitalised as equity. The enterprise
expansion fund can be used to increase capital upon approval of the relevant authorities. SBWF can
be used for special non-recurring bonus or collective welfare of the employees and assets acquired
through this fund shall not be taken as assets of the Group.

SBWF is classified and reported under the category of current liabilities in the consolidated balance
sheet and in respect of the profit or loss prepared in accordance with FRSs, as a charge to the profit
before tax as it is a liability to the employees.

Capital reserve represents reserve which is not free for distribution as dividends pursuant to the
relevant laws and regulations in PRC and can only to be capitalised as equity.

As the Group intends to focus on its green technology business, the Company had in October 2015
entered into a sale and purchase agreement to dispose its packaging business (comprising 3
subsidiaries, viz Yourun Packaging Technology (Hangzhou) Co., Ltd, Yue Hai Colour Printing and
Packaging Co., Ltd and Jia Hua Packaging and Printing Co., Ltd). For the purpose of financial
reporting, the packaging business is considered disposed in October 2015 (i.e. discontinued
operations). Consequently, the Group only has one business segment, which is the green
technology segment. As such, continuing operations refer to the existing green technology segment
while discontinued operations refer to the disposed packaging segment.

The results of the packaging segment from 1 January 2015 to 31 October 2015 have been included
in the line item ‘profit for the year from discontinued operations, net of tax' and the comparatives
relating to FY2014 have also been restated in accordance with FRS 105 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations. The assets and liabilities of the packaging segment were
accordingly deconsolidated with effect from 31 October 2015 from the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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29. Discontinued operations (cont'd)
(a) Comparative figures

As a result of the discontinued operations, reclassifications as shown in Note 29(b) below have

been made to the prior year's statement of comprehensive income.

(b) Income statement disclosure

The results of the discontinued operations for the year ended 31 December are as follows:

Revenue

Cost of sales

Other operating profit
Distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Finance costs

Other operating expenses

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

Profit after taxation from discontinued operations

Loss on disposal of subsidiaries
Profit from discontinued operations, net of tax

{c) The effects of cash flow is as follows:

The value of assets and liabilities of subsidiaries recorded in the consolidated financial

Group

2015 2014
RMB'000  RMB'000
(Restated)
211,929 259,102
(174,836)  (220,987)
12,781 7,880
(6,231) (7.178)
(13,400) (15,101)
(3,204) (5,302)
(11,117) (7.843)
15,922 10,571
(2,575) (715)
13,347 9,856
(10.,944) =
2,403 9,856

statements as at date of disposal, and the cash flow effect of the disposal were:

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Land use rights

Prepayment for plant and equipment
Long term investment

Deferred tax assets
Total non-current assets
Current assets
Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Available-for-sale investment
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

2015
RMB'000

69,304
12,470
818
996

1,256
84,845

29,740
104,153
18,450
13,810

166,153

(2,632)
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29. Discontinued operations (cont'd)

(c) The effects of cash flow is as follows:

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Deferred income

Short term bormrowings
Tax payables

Total current liabilities

MNon-controlling interest

Net assets attributable to equity holders of the Company
Deferred consideration (receivable)

Loss on disposal of subsidiaries

Consideration received
Less: Cash and cash equivalents of subsidiaries
disposed

Net cash outflow from disposal of subsidiaries

(d) Cash flow statement disclosures

2015
RMB'000

(81,719)
(686)
(52,400)
(1.477)

(135,662)

(62,810)

49,894
(38,950)

(10,944)

(13,810)

(13.810)

The cash flows attributable to the discontinued operations are as follows:

Operating
Investing
Financing

Met cash outflows

Group
2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB'000

49,999 20,726
(22,181) (19,211)
(28,783) (1,945)

(965) (430)
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29.  Discontinued operations (cont'd) 30. Service concession arrangements

The Group has entered into two service concession arrangements with certain governing bodies

and agencies of the govemment of the People's Republic of China (*PRC") to construct and operate

Group underground utility tunnel and upgrade the existing housing estate on Public-Private-Partnership

2015 2014 ("PPP") basis. These service concession arrangements generally involve the Group as an operator
to construct and operate the assets at a specified level of serviceability on behalf of the relevant

governmental authorities for periods ranging from 11 to 26 years (the “service concession periods”),

(e) (Loss)/Earnings per share disclosure

(Loss)yEamings per share from discontinued operations

attributable to the owners of the Company (cents per and the Group will be paid for its services over the relevant periods of the service concession
share) arrangements at prices stipulated through pricing mechanism. The assets will be transferred to the
- Basic (1.89) 203 respective grantors at the end of the service concession periods. T
- Diluted (1.89) 2.03 2015 2014

RMB'000  RMB'000
The basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share are calculated by dividing the (loss)/earnings from

discontinued operations, net of tax, attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares for basic earnings per share computation and dividing the loss from
discontinued operations, net of tax, attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average Underground Utility Tunnel project 38,643 -
number of ordinary shares for diluted earnings per share computation respectively. These loss and Insulation project 49.090 _
share data are presented in Note 8.

Service concession receivables:

87,733 -

The service concession receivables represent revenue recognised in relation to construction of the
projects. It is determined using the percentage of completion during the year. The service
concession receivables are expected to be received within the next twelve months.

At 31 December 2015, the Group had 2 (2014: Nil) service concession arrangements. A summary
of the major terms of the principal service concession arrangements entered into by the Group's
subsidiaries is set out below:

Name of Project Location in Name of Type of Service
subsidiary as name PRC grantor service concession
operator concession period

arrangement

Harbin W5RIED | Harbinl City, | W&/RiE PPP From 2015 to

Utilities i F4E4 | Heilongjiang | i % il (Financial 2041

Tunnel T 0 E Province EAES assets)

Construction Egﬁ;r%c:‘un'::
and project)
Management
Co., Ltd
("HUTCAM")

Harbin B SRR TT Harbin City, IR IR PPP From 2015 to
Prevailing Ut | Heilongjiang | % ik (Financial 2026
Municipal — Ry Province E e assets)

Engineering fERUEm

Co., Ld (Inst.h{ation

(*HPME") project)
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Related party transactions

In addition to those related party information disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the
following significant transactions between the Group and related parties who are not members of
the Group took place during the financial year on terms agreed between the parties:

(a) Sale and purchase of goods and services
2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB'000

Expenses
Operating lease expenses charged by related parties 350 300

Related parties are mainly companies in which a Company's director is a controlling
shareholder or has significant influence.

The transactions with related parties are made in accordance with the pricing policies
determined amongst the group companies. Outstanding balances at the year-end are
unsecured, interest-free, and to be settled in cash.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel

Group 2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB'000

Short term employee benefits 1,917 1,288

Defined contributions plans 142 59

2,059 1,347

Comprise amounts paid to:

- Directors of the Company 807 735

- Other key management personnel 1,252 612

The remuneration of key management personnel are determined by the remuneration
committee giving regard to the performance of individuals and market trend.

(c) As disclosed in Note 24, a related party as at 31 December 2014 had provided guarantees to
the banks in respect of the interest-bearing loans granted to the Group, as further detailed in
Note 24 to the financial statements.

(d) As disclosed in Note 11, during the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group completed the
acquisition of the New Subsidiaries from a director and ex-director. As the New Subsidiaries
were in net liabilities position at the point of acquisition, the consideration given was a nominal
amount of S§1,
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32.

33.

Commitments
Non-cancellable operating lease - as lessee

The Company entered into a commercial lease agreement for the rental of the office located in
Singapore, The lease has a remaining lease terms of 11 months with option for renewal.

Operating lease payments recognised as an expense for the continuing operations in the statement
of comprehensive income for the financial year ended 31 December 2015 amounted to RMB
650,000 (2014: RMB 996,000) (Note 5).

Future minimum lease payments payable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31
December are as follows:
Group

2015 2014
RMB'000  RMB'000

Not later than one year 115 288
Later than one year but not later than five years - 252
115 540

Segment information

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based on their products and
services. Subsequent to the disposal of the packaging segment during 2015, the Group only has
one reportable segment, green technology segment as at 31 December 2015. It includes those
energy conservation services and the installation of green technology and architecture.

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable operating segment.

Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance
is evaluated based on operating profit or loss and is measured consistently with operating profit or
loss in the consolidated financial statements. However, certain of the Group's financing (including
finance costs and finance income) and income taxes are managed on a group basis and are not
allocated to operating segments.

Transfer prices between operating segments are on an arm's length basis in a manner similar to
transactions with third parties.
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33.

2015
Revenue

Extemal customers

Results
Interest Income

Depreciation and
amortisation

Other non-cash
expenses

Segment profit/{loss)

Segment assets

Other disclosure
Additions to property,
plant and equipment

2014
Revenue
Extemal customers

Resuits
Interest Income
Depreciation and

amortisation
Other non-cash

write-back
Segment profit/(loss)

Segment assets

Other disclosure
Additions to property,
plant and equipment

Segment information (cont'd)

Continuing Discontinued

Mo further geographical segment information is presented as 100% (2014: 100%) of the Group's
revenue is derived from customers based in the People's Republic of China, and all the Group's
assets are located in the People's Republic of China.

operations operations
Adjustment
Green Packaging and
technology products elimination Note Consolidated
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
90,828 211,929 (211,929) A, B 90,828
(743) (423) 423 A (743)
559 9,582 (9,577) A,C 564
. 1,343 (1,343) A, D -
14,567 15,922 (24,829) A E 5,660
186,395 - 25927 F 212,322
709 2,217 (2,209) 717
30,549 259,102 (259,102) A, B 30,549
(3) (172) 172 A (3)
76 11,608 (11,608) A,C 78
- (415) 415 AD -
30,927 10,932 (15,895) A, E 25,964
56,714 268,715 558 F 325,987
2,097 1,322 (1,322) 2,097
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33.

Segment information (cont'd)

(A)

(B)

(c)

(E)

(F)

The amounts relating to the packaging business segment have been excluded to arrive at
amounts shown in profit or loss as they are presented separately in the statement of
comprehensive income within the line item "profit for the year from discontinued operations,
net of tax".

There are no inter-segment revenues.
The adjustment refers to depreciation and amortisation of common property, plant and
equipment used in both the green technology and packaging products segments at the

corporate level.

Other non-cash expenses consist of inventories written back and allowance for trade
receivables as presented in the respective notes to the financial statements.

Segment loss does not include corporate and common expenses amounting to RMB
8,907,000 (2014: RMB 5,324,000).

The following items are added to segment assets to arrive at the consolidated assets:

Segment assets do not include the following corporate assets which are not allocated to the
individual segments for management purposes:

2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB'000
Property, plant and equipment 7 4
Other receivables 25,655 307
Cash and cash equivalents 265 247
25,827 558
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34. Fair value of financial instruments

(a)

Fair value hierarchy

The Group categories fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that is dependent
on the valuation inputs used as follows:

Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or liabilities that the
Group can access at the measurement date,

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, and

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Fair value measurements that use inputs of different hierarchy levels are categorised in its
entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant
to the entire measurement.

Fair value of financial instruments that are carried at fair value

The fair values of the investments carried at fair value are determined by reference to quoted
prices in active markets. The fair value measurement of the investments under the Group are
classified under Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy, based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets and liabilities. As at 31 December 2015, the Group does not
have any of these investments.

Fair value of financial instruments by classes that are not carried at fair value and
whose carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair value

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 20), trade and other receivables (Note 18), interest-bearing
loans and borrowings (Note 24), trade and other payables (Note 21).

The carrying amounts of these financial assets and liabilities are a reasonable approximation
of fair values, either due to their short-term nature or that they are floating rate instruments that
are re-priced to market interest rates on or near the end of the reporting period.
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34.

35.

Fair value of financial instruments (cont'd)
(d) Fair value of financial instruments by classes that are not carried at fair value and
whose carrying amounts are not reasonable approximation of fair value

The fair value of financial liabilities by classes that are not carried at fair value and whose
carrying amounts are not a reasonable approximation of fair value are as follows:

Note 2015 2014

Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

Group

Financial assets

Equity instruments

(unquoted), at cost 13 - - 996 -*

* Investment in equity instruments (unquoted), at cost

Fair value information has not been disclosed for the Group's investment in equity
instruments that are carried at cost because fair value cannot be measured reliably as
there are no observable market prices for a similar equity instrument. The variability in the
range of reasonable fair value estimates is significant and the probabilities of the various
estimates cannot be reasonably assessed.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group and the Company are exposed to financial risks arising from its operations and the use
of financial instruments. The Group's principal financial instruments comprise interest-bearing loans
and borrowings and cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose of these financial instruments is
to raise finance for the Group's operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as trade and other receivables and trade and other payables, which arise directly
from its operations.

The key financial risks include interest rate risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency risk and credit risk.
The board of directors reviews and agrees policies and procedures for the management of these
risks, which are executed by the Financial Controller. The Audit Committee provides independent
oversight to the effectiveness of the risk management process. It is, and has been throughout the
current and previous financial year the Group's policy that no derivatives shall be undertaken.

There has been no change to the Group's exposure to these financial risks or the manner in which
it manages and measures the risks.
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35.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont'd)
Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Group's and the Company's
financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group's and the
Company's exposure to interest rate risk arises primarily from their interest-bearing loans and

borrowings. The Group does not use derivative financial instruments to hedge its interest rate risks.

The Group's policy is to manage interest cost using a mix of fixed and floating rate debts and to keep
the majority of its loans and borrowings at fixed rates of interest.

Sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, of the Group's profit before tax (through the impact on
borrowings). The analysis is performed on the assumption that borrowings are rolled over when
due.
Increase/  Increase/
decrease (decrease)
inbasis on profit

points before tax

RMB'000
2015
RMB +50 (58)
RMB 50 58
2014
RMB +50 (395)
RMB -50 385

Information relating to the Group's interest rate exposure is also disclosed in Note 24.

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group or the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting financial
obligations due to shortage of funds. The Group's and the Company's exposure to liguidity risks

arises primarily from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and liabilities. The Group
monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring liability planning tool.

The Group's and the Company's objective is to maintain a balance between the continuity of funding
and flexibility through the use of bank accepted drafts and interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

The Group relies on continuing financial support from the Group’s banker as disclosed in Note 2.1.
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35.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont'd)
Liquidity risk (cont’d)

The Group's and the Company's liquidity risk management policy is to maintain sufficient liquid
financial assets and credit facilities with reputable banks. Substantial amounts of the Group's cash
and cash equivalents are deposited with reputable financial institutions such as DBS Bank Ltd,
Bank of Communications, Everbright Bank and China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd., etc. so as to
provide the Group with the flexibility to meet working capital and capital investment needs.

At the end of the reporting period, approximately 100% (2014: 100%) and 100% (2014: 100%) of
the Group's and Company's loans and borrowings, respectively, will mature in less than one year
based on the carrying amount reflected below. 100% (2014: 36.5%) of such loans were rolled over
for repayment or repaid subsequent to year-end.

Analysis of financial instruments by remaining contractual maturities
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group's and the Company's financial assets

and liabilities at the end of the reporting period based on undiscounted contractual repayment
obligations.

1 year or
less
RMB'000
Group
2015
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 609
Trade and other receivables 126,483
Total undiscounted financial assets 127,092
Financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables 57,137
Loans and borrowings 103,316
Total undiscounted financial
liabilities 160,453
Total net undiscounted financial

liabilities (33,361)
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35.  Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont'd)

Liquidity risk (cont’d)
Analysis of financial instruments by remaining contractual maturities (cont'd)
1 year or
less
RMB'000
Company
2015
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 197
Trade and other receivables 25,219
Total undiscounted financial assets 25416
Financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables 2,296
Loans and borrowings 16,372
Total undiscounted financial
liabilities 18,668
Total net undiscounted financial
assets 6,748
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35.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont'd)

Liquidity risk (cont'd)

Analysis of financial instruments by remaining contractual maturities (cont'd)

Group

2014

Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Other investments

Total undiscounted financial assets

Financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables

Loans and bomowings

Interest on loan and borrowings

Total undiscounted financial
liabilities

Total net undiscounted financial
liabilities

Company

2014

Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables

Total undiscounted financial assets

Financial liabilities:

Trade and other payables

Loans and borrowings

Total undiscounted financial
liabilities

Total net undiscounted financial
liabilities

1 year or Over 5
less 1to 5 years years Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
15,634 - - 15,634
153,509 - - 153,509
- 996 - 996
169,143 996 - 170,139
123,373 - - 123,373
90,666 - - 90,666
1,432 - - 1,432
215,471 - - 215,471
(46,328) 996 - (45,332)
114 — — 114
250 - - 250
364 - - 364
7,683 - - 7,683
11,766 - - 11,766
19,449 - - 18,449
(19,085) - - (19,085)
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35.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont'd)
Foreign currency risk

The Group operates predominantly in the People's Republic of China ("PRC") and usually transacts
in Renminbi ("RMB"), the official currency in China. Currently, the PRC government imposes control
over foreign currencies. RMB is not freely convertible. Enterprises operating in the PRC can enter
into exchange transactions through the People's Bank of China or other authorised financial
institutions. Payments for imported materials or services and remittance of earnings of the
subsidiaries to the Company, which is outside of the PRC, are subject to the availability of foreign
currencies which depends on the foreign currency denominated earnings of the enterprise, or
exchanges of RMB for foreign currency must be arranged through the People's Bank of China or
other authorised financial institutions. Approval for exchanges at the People's Bank of China or
other authorised financial institutions is granted to enterprises in the PRC for valid reasons such as
purchase of imported materials and remittance of earnings. While conversion of RMB into
Singapore dollars or other currencies can generally be effected at the People's Bank of China or
other authorised financial institutions, there is no guarantee that it can be effected at all times.

The Group does not have significant transaction currency exposures.

Transactional currency exposures arising from sales or purchases that are denominated in a
currency other than the respective functional currencies of Group entities, primarily SGD and RMB,
are not significant.

The Group and the Company also hold cash and cash equivalents denominated in foreign
currencies for working capital purposes. At the end of the reporting period, such foreign currency
balances (mainly in SGD) amounted to RMB 265,000 (2014: RMB 114,000) and RMB 197,000
(2014: RMB 114,000) for the Group and the Company respectively.

The Group manages its foreign exchange exposure risk by matching, as far as possible, receipts
and payments in each individual currency. Foreign cumrency is converted into the relevant
functional currency as and when the management deemed necessary. The unhedged exposure is
reviewed and monitored closely on an ongoing basis and management will consider hedging any
material exposure where appropriate.
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35.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont'd)
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments should a
counterparty default on its obligations. The Group's and the Company's exposure to credit risk
arises primarily from trade and other receivables. For other financial assets (including unquoted
equities and cash and cash equivalents), the Group and the Company minimise credit risk by
dealing exclusively with high credit rating counterparties.

The Group's objective is to seek continual revenue growth while minimising losses incurred due to
increased credit risk exposure. The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group's policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to
credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis
with the result that the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant.

For transactions that do not occur in the country of the relevant operating unit, the Group does not
offer credit terms without the specific approval of management. The Group does not have significant
exposure to any individual customer or counterparty. As the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.

Exposure to credit risk
With respect to credit risk arising from other financial assets of the Group, which comprise cash and
cash equivalents, the Group's exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty, with a

maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments.

96% of the Group's trade receivables are due from 1 major customer which is agency of the
government of the PRC.

Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

Trade and other receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are creditworthy debtors with
good payment record with the Group. Cash and cash equivalents are placed with reputable financial
institutions.

Financial assets that are either past due or impaired

Information regarding financial assets that are either past due or impaired is disclosed in Note 18
(Trade and other receivables).

11



112

Green Build Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2015

(In Chinese Renminbi)

36.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong
credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder
value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in the light of changes in
economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. Mo changes were

made in the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014,

As disclosed in Note 26, certain subsidiaries of the Group are required by the Foreign Enterprise
Law of the PRC to contribute to and maintain a non-distributable statutory reserve fund whose
utilisation is subject to approval by the relevant PRC authorities. This externally imposed capital
requirement has been complied with by the above mentioned subsidiaries for the financial years
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

The Group is currently in a net debt and net equity position as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 and
will continue to monitor the level of borrowings and be guided by prudent financial policies. The net
debt and equity details as at the end of the reporting periods were as follows:

Group
Note 2015 2014

RMB'000 RMB'000
Interest-bearing loans and bomowings 24 103,316 90,666
Trade and other payables 21 57,137 123,373
Other liabilities 23 - 253
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 20 (609) (15,634)
Net debt 159,844 198,658
Equity attributable to the owners of the Company 47,176 44 449
Less: Statutory reserve funds 26 - (7,532)
Total equity 47,176 36,917

Green Build Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2015

(In Chinese Renminbi)

37.

38.

39.

Events after the reporting period

Subsequent to the year end, the group obtained the shareholder’'s approval on the disposal of the
packaging segment during the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 23 February 2016.

On 1 March 2016, the Company issued 7,818,000 new ordinary shares of the Company at the price

of $%$0.315 each to its employee. This issuance of new ordinary shares has resulted in the increase
in the share capital of the Company by RMB 10,986,000.

Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been restated and re-presented as a result of the discontinued
operations detailed in Note 29,

Authorisation of financial statements for issue

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 were authorised for issue in
accordance with a resolution of the directors dated 1 April 2018.
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SHAREHOLDINGS STATISTICS TWENTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS
SHAREHOLDERS' INFORMATION AS AT 21 MARCH 2015

NO. OF
No of equity securities : 246,677,796 NO. NAME SHARES %
Class of shares : Ordinary share
Voting rights =/ HaNIR s 1 BNP PARIBAS NOMINEES SINGAPORE PTE LTD 83,360,000 33.79
There is no treasury share held in the issued capital of the Company. 2 ZHAO LIZHI 67,518,111 27.37
3 PHILLIP SECURITIES PTE LTD 28,068,800 11.38
DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS 4 CHAN MANG GHOON 16,606,000 6.73
STATISTICS OF SHAREHOLDINGS 5 YU BIN YAN 11,523,000 467
NO. OF 6 OCBC SECURITIES PRIVATE LTD 9,782,861 3.97
SIZE OF SHAREHOLDINGS SHAREHOLDERS % NO. OF SHARES % 7 JIANG JUNWEI 8,880,000 3.60
8 DBS VICKERS SECURITIES (SINGAPORE) PTE LTD 6,387,400 2.59
1 - 99 - - - - 9 ZHANG LI 4,814,000 195
100 - 1,000 30 19.87 25,624 0.01 10 UOB KAY HIAN PRIVATE LIMITED 2,224 000 0.90
1,001 - 10,000 73 48.34 381,000 0.15 1" WANG PENGRUI 2,000,000 0.81
10,001 - 1,000,000 36 23.84 3,644,000 1.48 12 MAYBANK KIM ENG SECURITIES PTE LTD 1,463,000 0.59
1,000,001 AND ABOVE 12 7.95 242627172 98.36 13 CHEN LIPING 400,000 0.16
14 DERRICK ONG KENG GEE 351,900 0.14
TOTAL 151 100.00 246,677,796 100.00 15 ABN AMRO CLEARING BANK N.V. 308,100 0.12
16 LOH SER SOON 300,000 0.12
17 WINMARK INVESTMENTS PTE LTD 300,000 0.12
18 GU JIEYING 250,000 0.10
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS 19 TAN LING LEE 200,000 0.08
(As recorded in the Register of Substantial Shareholders) 20 WANG LULU 200,000 0.08
Direct Interest Deemed Interest
Substantial Shareholders No. of Shares % No. of Shares % TOTAL 244 937,172 99.27
Zhao Lizhi () 67,518,111 27.37 30,000,000 1216
Li Mingyang - - 45,000,000 18.24
Chan Mang Ghoon 16,606,000 6.73 ; : PERCENTAGE OF SHAREHOLDINGS IN PUBLIC'S HANDS

32.10% of the Company's shares are held in the hands of public. Accordingly, the Company has
complied with Rule 723 of the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST.

Notes:

(1) Zhao Lizhi and Li Mingyang are deemed to be interested in the shares held by BNP
Paribas Nominees Singapore Pte Ltd by virtue of Section 7 of the Companies Act.
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GREEN BUILD TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
(Company Registration No. 200401338W)
(the "Company”)

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of GREEN BUILD TECHNOLOGY
LIMITED will be held at Tanglin Room 1 in RELC International Hotel, 30 Orange Grove Road

Singapore 258352 on 29 April 2016 at 10.00 a.m. for the following purposes:

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS

; 8 To receive and adopt the Audited Accounts for the
financial year ended 31 December 2015 together with the
Directors’ Statement and the Auditors’ Report of the
Company.

2. To approve the payment of Directors’ fees of up to
S$170,000 for the financial year ending 31 December 2016
to be paid quarterly in arrears.

3. To re-elect Ms Wu Xueying, who is retiring in accordance
with Article 91 of the Company’'s Constitution as Director
of the Company.

[See Explanatory Note (i)]

4. To re-elect Dr Yao Fengge, who is retiring in accordance
with Article 91 of the Company’s Constitution as Director
of the Company.

[See Explanatory Note (ii)]

5. To re-appoint Mr Li Mingyang, who is retiring in
accordance with Article 97 of the Company’s Constitution
as Director of the Company.

[See Explanatory Note (iii)]]
6. To re-appoint Messrs Emst & Young LLP as Auditors of

the Company and to authorise the Directors to fix their
remuneration.

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS

(Resolution1)

(Resolution2)

(Resolution3)

(Resolution4)

(Resolution5)

(Resolution6)

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions as an Ordinary

Resolut ions, with or without modifications:

GREEN BUILD TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
Notice of Annual General Meeting

Page 2
7.

Authority to issue shares

“That, pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, Cap. 50 (the "Act") and
Rule 806(2) of the Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited (“SGX-ST"), authority be and is hereby given to the Directors
of the Company to allot and issue shares and convertible securities in the
Company at any time and upon such terms and conditions and for such
purposes and to such persons as the Directors may in their absolute
discretion deem fit, to:

(a) issue shares in the capital of the Company whether by way of rights,
bonus or otherwise;

(b)  make or grant offers, agreements or options that might or would require
shares to be issued or other transferable rights to subscribe for or
purchase shares (collectively, “Instruments”) including but not limited
to the creation and issue of warrants, debentures or other instruments
convertible into shares;

(c) issue additional Instruments arising from adjustments made to the
number of Instruments previously issued in the event of rights, bonus or
capitalisation issues;

and (notwithstanding that the authority conferred by the shareholders may
have ceased to be in force) issue shares pursuant to any Instrument made or

granted by the Directors while the authority was in force, provided always that:

(iy  the aggregate number of shares to be issued pursuant to this resolution
(including shares to be issued in pursuance of Instruments, made or
granted pursuant to this resolution) does not exceed fifty per centum
(50%) of the Company's total number of issued shares excluding
treasury shares, of which the aggregate number of shares (including
shares to be issued in pursuance of Instruments made or granted
pursuant to this resclution) to be issued other than on a pro-rata basis
to shareholders of the Company does not exceed twenty per centum
(20%) of the total number of issued shares excluding treasury shares,
and for the purpose of this resolution, the total number of issued shares
excluding treasury shares shall be the Company’s total number of
issued shares excluding treasury shares at the time this resolution is
passed, after adjusting for;

(A) new shares arising from the conversion or exercise of convertible
securities, or

(B) new shares arising from exercising share options or vesting of
share awards outstanding or subsisting at the time this resolution
is passed, or

(C) any subsequent bonus issue, consolidation or subdivision of the
Company's shares; and

(ii)  such authority shall, unless revoked or varied by the Company at a
general meeting, continue in force until the conclusion of the next
Annual General Meeting or the date by which the next Annual
General Meeting of the Company is required by law to be held,
whichever is earlier.”

[See Explanatory Note (iv)]

(Resolution 7)
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GREEN BUILD TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
Notice of Annual General Meeting
Page 3

8.

Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate for Interested Person (Resolution 8)

Transactions

“That for the purposes of Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual of the Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited:

(a) approval be given for the renewal of the mandate for the Company, its
subsidiaries and associated companies or any of them to enter into any
of the transactions falling within the types of Interested Person
Transactions as set out in the Appendix to the Annual Report (the
“Appendix") with any party who is of the class of Interested Persons
described in the Appendix, provided that such transactions are carried
out on normal commercial terms and in accordance with the review
procedures of the Company for such Interested Person Transactions
as set out in the Appendix (the “Shareholders’ Mandate");

(b) the Shareholders' Mandate shall, unless revoked or varied by the
Company in a general meeting, continue in force until the conclusion of
the next Annual General Meeting of the Company or the date by which
the next Annual General Meeting of the Company is required by law to
be held, whichever is earlier; and

{c) authority be given to the Directors of the Company to complete and do
all such acts and things (including executing all such documents as
may be required) as they may consider necessary, desirable or
expedient to give effect to the Shareholders’ Mandate as they may
think fit.

[See Explanatory Note (v)]

To transact any other business which may properly be transacted
at an Annual General Meeting.

By Crder of the Board

Wu Xueying
Chief Executive Officer

14 April 2016

Explanatory Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(i)

Ms Wu Xueying will, upon re-election as a Director of the Company, remain as an Executive
Director of the Company.

Dr Yao Fengge will, upon re-election as a Director of the Company, remain as a member of
the Nominating, Audit and Remuneration Committees. Dr Yao Fengge will be considered
independent for the purpose of Rule 704(8) of the Listing Manual of SGX-ST.

Mr Li Mingyang will, upon re-election as a Director of the Company, remain as an Executive
Director of the Company.

GREEN BUILD TECHNCLOGY LIMITED
Motice of Annual General Meeting
Page 4

(iv) Ordinary Resolution 7 proposed in item 7 is to empower the Directors, from the date of the
passing of Ordinary Resolution 7 to the date of the next Annual General Meeting, to issue
shares in the capital of the Company and to make or grant instruments (such as warrants or
debentures) convertible into shares, and to issue shares in pursuance of such instruments,
up to an amount not exceeding in total 50% of the issued shares (excluding treasury shares)
in the capital of the Company, with a sub-limit of 20% of the issued shares (excluding
treasury shares) for issues other than on a pro-rata basis to shareholders.

v) The Ordinary Resolution 8 proposed in item 8 above, if passed, will authorise the Interested
Person Transactions as described in the Appendix to the Annual Report and recurring in the
year and will empower the Directors of the Company to do all acts necessary to give effect
to the Shareholders' Mandate. This authority will, unless previously revoked or varied by the
Company in a general meeting, expire at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting
of the Company or the date by which the next Annual General Meeting of the Company is
required by law to be held, whichever is the earlier.

Notes:

(1) Except for a member who is a relevant intermediary (as defined under the Companies Act,
Cap. 50), a member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to
appoint a proxy or proxies (not more than two) to attend and vote on hisfher behalf. A
member of the Company who is a relevant intermediary may appoint more than two proxies
to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting, but such proxies must be appointed to
exercise the rights attached to a specified number of shares. A proxy need not be a member
of the Company.

(2) The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be under the hand of the appointor or of
his/her attorney duly authorised in writing. Where the instrument appointing a proxy or
proxies is executed by a corporation, it must be executed either under its seal or under the
hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised.

(3) The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be deposited at the registered office of the
Company at 9 Temasek Boulevard Suntec City Tower 2 #09-01, Singapore 038989 at least
48 hours before the time fixed for the Meeting. A Depositor's name must appear in the
Depository Register maintained by the Central Depository (Pte) Limited not less than 72
hours before the time appointed for the holding of the Annual General Meeting in order for
him/her to be entitled to vote at the Annual General Meeting.

Personal Data Protection:

By attending the Annual General Meeting and/or any adjournment thereof or submitting an instrument
appointing a proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) to attend, speak and vote at the Annual General
Meeting and/or any adjournment thereof, a member of the Company (i) consents to the collection, use
and disclosure of the member's personal data by the Company (or its agents) for the purpose of the
processing and administration by the Company (or its agents) of proxies and representatives
appointed for the Annual General Meeting (including any adjournment thereof) and the preparation
and compilation of the attendance lists, minutes and other documents relating to the Annual General
Meeting (including any adjournment thereof), and in order for the Company (or its agents) to comply
with any applicable laws, listing rules, regulations and/or guidelines (collectively, the "Purposes”), (ii)
warrants that where the member discloses the personal data of the member's proxy(ies) and/or
representative(s) to the Company (or its agents), the member has obtained the prior consent of such
proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) for the collection, use and disclosure by the Company (or its
agents) of the personal data of such proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) for the Purposes, and (jii)
agrees that the member will indemnify the Company in respect of any penalties, liabilities, claims,
demands, losses and damages as a result of the member's breach of warranty.
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APPENDIX - RENEWAL OF SHAREHOLDERS’ MANDATE FOR INTERESTED
PERSON TRANSACTIONS

1.

N BUILD TECHNOLOGY | ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Background

The Board of Directors of Green Build Technology Limited (the “Company”) refer to:

(a) the notice of the Twelfth Annual General Meeting of the Company dated 14 April
2016 (the “Notice") convening the Twelfth Annual General Meeting (“Twelfth AGM")
of the Company to be held on Friday, 29 April 2016, which accompanies this annual
report of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2015 (*Annual
Report™); and

(b) Resolution 8 under the heading "Special Business” as set out in the Notice.

Shareholders’ Mandate

Pursuant to the Company's Circular dated 11 September 2014 (the “Circular”), approval of
the shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) was deemed obtained for a
shareholders’ mandate (the "Shareholders’ Mandate") to enable the Company and its
subsidiaries which are considered to be “entities at risk” within the meaning of Rule 904(2)
of the listing manual (the “Listing Manual®) of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited (the "SGX-ST"), in their ordinary course of businesses, to enter into categories of
transactions with specified classes of the Company’s interested persons, provided that such
transactions are entered into on an arm's length basis and on normal commercial terms. The
details of the interested person transactions and shareholders' mandate were disclosed in
pages 19 to 25 of the said Circular,

Proposed Renewal of the Shareholders’ Mandate

The Shareholders’ Mandate was expressed to take effect until the conclusion of the next
Annual General Meeting of the Company ("AGM"). Accordingly, the Directors propose that
the Shareholders’ Mandate be renewed at the Twelfth AGM, to take effect until the Thirteenth
AGM of the Company.

Details of the Shareholders’ Mandate

Details of the Shareholders’ Mandate, including the rationale for, and the benefits to, the
Company, the review procedures for determining transaction prices with interested persons
and other general information relating to Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual, are set out in the
Annexure of this Appendix,

Audit Committee Statement

The Audit Committee has reviewed the terms of the Shareholders’ Mandate and confirms
that:

(a) the review procedures for determining the transaction prices under the Shareholders’
Mandate have not changed since the conclusion of the Eleventh Annual General
Meeting convened on the 21 April 2015 and the Extracrdinary General Meeting
convened on 3 October 2014 when the Shareholders’ Mandate had been approved;
and

(b) the review procedures referred to in paragraph 7 of the Annexure are sufficient to
ensure that the transactions will be carried out on normal commercial terms and will
not be prejudicial to the interests of the Company and its minority Shareholders.

If, during the periodic reviews by the Audit Committee, it is of the view that the established
review procedures are no longer appropriate or adequate to ensure that the interested person
transactions will be transacted on normal commercial terms and will not be prejudicial to the

10.

11.

interests of the Company and minority Shareholders, the Company will seek a fresh mandate
from Shareholders based on new review procedures.

Directors’ and Substantial Shareholders’ Interests

The interests of the Directors and substantial shareholders of the Company in the issued
share capital of the Company as at 21 March 2016 can be found on page 114 and 115 of this
Annual Report.

Abstention from Voting

Mr Zhao Lizhi, who is the Executive Chairman and Director of the Company, has interests in
the shares of the Interested Person (as described in paragraph 5.1 of the Annexure to this
Appendix), and also holds directorship and/or executive position in it. He and his respective
associates will abstain from voting on Resolution 8 being the Ordinary Resolution relating to
the proposed renewal of the Shareholders' Mandate in respect of their shareholdings in the
Company, if any, at the Twelfth AGM.

Directors’ Recommendation

The Directors who are considered independent for the purposes of the proposed renewal of
the Shareholders Mandate are Ms Wu Xueying, Mr Li Mingyang, Mr Kuan Cheng Tuck and
Dr Yao Fengge (the “Independent Directors™). The Independent Directors are of the opinion
that the entry into of the Interested Person Transactions between the EAR Group (as
described in paragraph 2.2 of the Annexure to this Appendix) and those Interested Persons
(as described in paragraph 5.1 of the Annexure to this Appendix) in the ordinary course of its
business will be entered into to enhance the efficiency of the EAR Group and are in the best
interests of the Company.

For the reasons set out in paragraphs 2, 4 and 8 of the Annexure to this Appendix, the
Independent Directors recommend that Shareholders vote in favour of Resolution 8, being
the Ordinary Resolution relating to the proposed renewal of the Shareholders' Mandate at the
Twelfth AGM.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The Directors collectively and individually accept responsibility for the accuracy of the
information given herein and confirm, having made all reasonable enquiries, that to the best
of their knowledge and belief, the facts stated and the opinions expressed herein are fair and
accurate and that there are no material facts the omission of which would make any
statement herein misleading.

Action To Be Taken By Shareholders

If a Shareholder is unable to attend the Twelfth AGM and wishes to appoint a proxy to attend
and vote on his/her/their behalf, he/her/they should complete, sign and return the attached
Proxy Form in accordance with the instructions printed thereon as soon as possible and, in
any event, so as to reach the registered office of the Company at 9 Temasek Boulevard,
#09-01 Suntec Tower Tow, Singapore 038989 not later than 10.00 a.m. on 27 April 2016.
Completion and return of the Proxy Form by a Shareholder will not prevent him/her/them from
attending and voting at the AGM if he/she/they so wish. In addition, in the case of shares
entered in the Depository Register, the Company may reject a Proxy Form if the Shareholder,
being the appointor, is not shown to have shares entered against his/her/their name(s) in the
Depository Register as at 72 hours before the time appointed for holding the Twelfth AGM, as
certified by The Central Depository (Pte) Limited to the Company.

SGX-ST

The SGX-ST takes no responsibility for the accuracy of any statements or opinions made in
this Appendix and the accompanying Annexure.
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ANNEXURE - THE SHAREHOLDERS' MANDATE

Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual

Chapter 9 of the listing manual (the “Listing Manual") of the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited (the "SGX-ST") governs transactions by a listed company, as well as
transactions by its subsidiaries and associated companies that are considered to be at risk,
with the listed company’s interested persons. When this Chapter applies to a transaction and
the value of that transaction alone or on aggregation with other transactions conducted with
the interested person during the financial year reaches, or exceeds, certain materiality
thresholds, the listed company is required to make an immediate announcement, or to make
an immediate announcement and seek its shareholders’ approval for that transaction.

Except for certain transactions which, by reason of the nature of such transactions, are not
considered to put the listed company at risk to its interested person and hence are excluded
from the ambit of Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual, immediate announcement(s}), or immediate
announcement(s) and shareholders' approval would be required in respect of transactions
with interested persons if certain financial thresholds (which are based on the value of the
transaction as compared with the listed company’s latest audited consolidated net tangible
assets ("NTA")) are reached or exceeded. In particular, shareholders’ approval is required for
an interested person transaction of a value equal to, or which exceeds:

(a) 5% of the listed company’s latest audited consolidated NTA; or

(b) 5% of the listed company's latest audited consolidated NTA, when aggregated with
other transactions entered into with the same interested person (as such term is
construed under Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual) during the same financial year.

Based on the latest audited consclidated accounts of Green Build Technology Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the Company and its subsidiaries shall
hereinafter be referred to as the “Group”) for the financial year ended 31 December 2015,
the consolidated net tangible assets of the Group was approximately RMB 39,830,000. As
such, in relation to the Company, for the purposes of Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual, in the
current financial year and until such time as the consolidated audited accounts of the Group
for the next financial year are published, 5% of the latest audited consolidated net tangible
assets of the Group would be approximately RMB 1,992,000.

Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual permits a listed company, however, to seek a mandate from
its shareholders for recurrent transactions of a revenue or trading nature or those necessary
for its day-to-day operations such as the purchase and sale of supplies and materials (but not
in respect of the purchase or sale of assets, undertakings or businesses) that may be carried
out with the listed company's interested persons (the “Shareholders’ Mandate”).

Under the Listing Manual:-

(a) an “entity at risk" means:
(i) the listed company;

(i) @ subsidiary of the listed company that is not listed on the SGX-ST or an
approved exchange; or

(i) an associated company of the listed company that is not listed on the SGX-ST or
an approved exchange, provided that the listed company and/or its subsidiaries
(the “listed group"), or the listed group and its interested person(s), has control
over the associated company;

(b)  an ‘interested person” means a director, chief executive officer or controlling
shareholder of the listed company or an associate of any such director, chief executive
officer or controlling shareholder;

2

2.1.

2:2:

(e)  an "associate” means, in relation to an interested person who is a director, chief
executive officer, substantial or controlling shareholder:

(i) an immediate family member (that is, the spouse, child, adopted-child,
step-child, sibling and parent) of such director, chief executive officer or
controlling shareholder;

(i) the trustees of any trust of which the director or his immediate family, the chief
executive officer or his immediate family or controlling shareholder or his
immediate family is a beneficiary or, in the case of a discretionary trust, is a
discretionary object;

(iiiy any company in which the director and his immediate family, the chief executive
officer and his immediate family or controlling shareholder and his immediate
family has an aggregate interest (directly or indirectly) of 30% or more; and

(iv) where a substantial shareholder or a controlling shareholder which is a
corporation, its subsidiary or holding company or fellow subsidiary or a company
in which it and/or they have (directly or indirectly) an interest of 30% or more;

(d) an“approved exchange" means a stock exchange that has rules which safeguard the
interests of shareholders against interested person transactions according to similar
principles in Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual; and

an “interested person transaction” means a transaction between an entity at risk and
an interested person.

Rationale for the Shareholders” Mandate

It is envisaged that in the ordinary course of their businesses, transactions between
companies in the EAR Group (as defined below) and the Company's interested
persons (as defined in paragraph 5 below) are likely to occur from time to time. Such
transactions would include the provision of goods and services in the ordinary course
of business of the EAR Group to the Company'’s interested persons.

In view of the time-sensitive nature of commercial transactions, the obtaining of the
Shareholders Mandate pursuant to Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual will enable:

(a) the Company;

subsidiaries of the Company (other than a subsidiary that is listed on the
(b)  SGX-ST or an approved exchange); and

associated companies of the Company (other than an associated company that
is listed on the SGX-ST or an approved exchange) over which the Group, or the

(c)  Group and interested person(s) of the Company, has or have control, (together,
the "EAR Group”), or any of them,

in the ordinary course of their businesses, to enter into the categories of transactions
(“Interested Person Transactions”) set out in paragraph 6 below with the specified
classes of the Company's interested person(s) (the “Interested Person(s)") set out in
paragraph 5.1 below, provided such Interested Person Transactions are made on
normal commercial terms.
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3.1

3.2,

<<

3.4,

5.1.

52

7.1,

7.2.

The Shareholders’ Mandate

The Shareholders’ Mandate will cover the range of activities detailed in paragraph & below.

The Shareholders’ Mandate will not cover an Interested Person Transaction which has a
value less than 5%100,000 as the threshold and aggregation requirements contained in
Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual would not apply to such an Interested Person Transaction.

Transactions with interested persons (including the Interested Persons) that do not fall within
the ambit of the Shareholders’ Mandate will be subject to the relevant provisions of Chapter
9 of the Listing Manual and/or other applicable provisions of the Listing Manual.

The Shareholders’ Mandate will take effect from the date of the passing of Resolution 8 as
stipulated in the notice of the Twelfth Annual General Meeting of the Company (the “Twelfth
AGM") relating to the renewal of the Shareholders' Mandate to be proposed at the Twelfth
AGM to be held on Friday, 29 April 2016 until the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company.

Benefits of the Shareholders Mandate

The Shareholders’ Mandate (and its subsequent renewal thereafter on an annual basis) will
enhance the ability of companies in the EAR Group to pursue business opportunities which
are time-sensitive in nature, and will eliminate the need for the Company to announce, or to
announce and convene separate general meetings on each occasion to seek Shareholders'
prior approval for the entry by the relevant company in the EAR Group into such transactions.
This will substantially reduce the expenses associated with the convening of general
meetings on an ad hoc basis, improve administrative efficacy considerably, and allow

manpower resources and time to be channelled towards attaining other corporate objectives.

Classes of Interested Persons

The Shareholders’ Mandate will apply to the Group’s interested person transactions with
Harbin Dali Aluminium Doors & Windows Products Co., Ltd. (the “Interested Person”).

Transactions with the Interested Person, which do not fall within the ambit of the proposed

Shareholders Mandate, shall be subject to the relevant provisions of Chapter 8 of the Listing
Manual.

Categories of Interested Person Transactions

The Interested Person Transaction that will be covered by the Shareholders’ Mandate refer
to the purchase of supplies and materials from Interested Persons.

Review Procedures for Interested Person Transactions

The Group's principal activities include that of upgrading existing housing estates using
green architecture and green technology. As part of such upgrading projects, the EAR Group
may enter into transactions with the Interested Person in the ordinary course of business to
purchase supplies and materials for use in the upgrading projects.

In general, the EAR Group has internal control procedures to ensure that the Interested
Person Transactions are undertaken on an arm'’s length basis and on normal commercial
terms consistent with the EAR Group's usual practices and policies, which (in relation to
services or products to be provided to or procured from the Interested Person) are no more
favourable than those extended to unrelated third parties. As a general practice, the EAR
Group will only enter into transactions with the Interested Person if the terms offered by the

7.3.

Interested Person are no less favourable than that offered by unrelated third parties. The Audit
Committee will also review and approve the transactions where applicable, as further
described below.

To ensure that all Interested Person Transactions are carried out on normal commercial terms
and are not prejudicial to the interests of the Company and its minority Shareholders, the Group
has established the following guidelines and procedures to be complied with prior to entry by
the Group into any Interested Person Transaction:

(a)  the Chief Financial Officer (and/or the Financial Controller, as the case may be), of the
Group and the finance manager of the relevant EAR Group entity entering into the
Interested Person Transaction (collectively, the “Finance Team®) shall review
guotations obtained from the Interested Person and at least two other guotes from
unrelated third parties. The EAR Group will only enter into transactions with such
Interested Person provided the guotation offered by the Interested Person, after taking
into consideration various factors including, inter alia, credit standing, volume of
transactions, delivery requirements, age of products, product attachments, tenure of
business relationship and potential for future repeat business, are no less favourable
than those offered by the unrelated third parties, when compared to at least two latest
similar transactions between the EAR Group and unrelated third parties; and

(b)  where it is not possible to compare the terms of an Interested Person Transaction
against the terms of other transactions with unrelated third parties, the Finance Team
will consider whether the pricing of the Interested Person Transactions is in accordance
with the EAR Group's usual business practices and pricing policies, and consistent with
the usual unit costs (i.e. the unit costs chargeable by third parties at market rate for
similar goods supplied by them) to be obtained for the same or substantially similar
types of transactions, to determine whether the relevant transaction is carried out at
arm's length and on normal commercial terms.

7.3.1. Approval by Directors and Audit Committee

In addition to the guidelines and review procedures set out above, the following
approval procedures will be implemented to supplement existing internal control
procedures and ensure that the Interested Person Transactions are undertaken on an
arms' length basis and on normal commercial terms:

(a) thereview and approval of the Financial Controller and any one Director (with no
interest, direct or indirect, in the Interested Person Transaction) is required for
any Interested Person Transaction where the value thereof is below the lower of,
RME & Million or 3% of the Group's latest audited NTA; and

(b)  the review and approval of the Audit Committee is required for any Interested
Person Transaction where the value thereof is equal to, or above the lower of,
RME 5 Million or 3% of the Group's latest audited NTA.

The approval thresholds set out above will be adopted by the Company taking into
account, inter alia, the nature, volume, recurrent frequency and size of the Interested
Person Transactions, as well as the EAR Group's day-to-day operations, administration
and businesses, The threshold limits are arrived at as a result of a balancing exercise
after considering the operational efficiency for the day-to-day business operations of
the Group and the internal controls for interested person transactions.

In addition, the above review includes the examination of the Interested Person
Transactions and its supporting documents or such other data deemed necessary by
the Directors or the Audit Committee. The Finance Team will prepare the relevant
information to assist the Directors or the Audit Committee in its review. The Directors or
the Audit Committee shall, when it deems fit, have the right to require the appointment
of independent advisers and/or valuers to provide additional information or review of
controls and its implementation pertaining to the Interested Person Transactions under
review.

125



126

7.3.2, Periodic Review Procedures

The EAR Group has also implemented the following procedures for the identification of
Interested Persons and the record of all Interested Person Transactions:

(a) the Finance Team will maintain a list of Interested Persons and their Associates (which
is to be updated immediately if there are any changes) to enable identification of
Interested Persons. The list of Interested Persons which is maintained shall be
reviewed quarterly by the Chief Financial Officer (and/or the Financial Controller, as
the case may be) and subject to such verifications or declarations as required by the
Audit Committee from time to time or for such period as determined by them. This list
of Interested Persons shall be disseminated to all staff of the Group that the Finance
Team considers relevant for the purpose of entering into transactions that fall under the
Shareholders’ Mandate;

(b)  the Finance Team will maintain a register of transactions carried out with the Interested
Person pursuant to the Shareholders' Mandate (recording the basis, including the
quotations obtained to support such basis, on which they were entered into) (the “IPT
Register”). Any discrepancies or significant variances (as determined by the Audit
Committee) from the Group's usual business practices and pricing policies will be
highlighted to the Audit Committee. The |PT Register will also record any transaction
with an Interested Person that is less than S$100,000 in value, though such
transactions are not covered under the Shareholders' Mandate;

(¢) the Audit Committee shall, at least on a quarterly basis, periodically review the IPT
Register to ensure that the Interested Person Transactions are carried out on normal
commercial terms and in accordance with the guidelines and review procedures under
the Shareholders’ Mandate. All relevant non-quantitative factors will also be taken into
account, including but not limited to customer requirements, specification compliance,
delivery schedules, track record, experience and expertise. The Group's internal and
external auditors shall assist the Audit Committee in such review and carry out such
tests as they deem necessary,

(d) the Company's annual internal audit plan shall incorporate a review of all Interested
Person Transactions, including the established review procedures for monitoring of
such Interested Person Transactions, entered into during the current financial year
pursuant to the Shareholders' Mandate. The Group's internal auditor shall, on a yearly
basis, subject to adjustment in frequency, and depending on factors such as, inter alia,
substantial increment of aggregate transactional value, report to the Audit Committee
on all Interested Person Transactions, and the basis of such transactions, entered into
with the Interested Person(s) during the preceding period;

(e) as part of the Group's annual audit, the external auditor will review the Interested
Person Transactions on a sampling basis. The external auditor will report to the Audit
Committee in the event of any non-compliance based on the audit sample;

(f) the Audit Committee and the Board shall review the internal audit reports to ascertain
that the guidelines and review procedures under the Shareholders' Mandate have
been complied with and have overall responsibility for the determination of such
guidelines and review procedures with the authority to sub-delegate to individuals or
committees within the Company as they deem appropriate. In addition, the Audit
Committee shall also review from time to time the guidelines and review procedures to
determine if they are adequate and/or commercially practicable in ensuring and that all
Interested Person Transactions are conducted on normal commercial terms; and

7.3.3.
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8.1.
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8.3.

(a) if during its periodic reviews the Audit Committee is of the view that the proposed
review procedures and guidelines in place have become inappropriate or insufficient
in view of the changes to the nature of, or the manner in which, the business activities
of the Group are conducted, it will, in consultation with the Board, take such actions
as it deems proper in respect of such procedures and guidelines and/or modify or
implement such procedures and guidelines as may be necessary to ensure that the
Interested Person Transactions will be conducted on normal commercial terms and,
hence, will not be prejudicial to the interests of the Company and its minority
Shareholders. The Company will then accordingly seek a fresh mandate from the
Shareholders based on the new review procedures and guidelines for Interested
Person Transactions.

Interested Audit Committee Member to Abstain

In the event that a member of the Audit Committee (where applicable) is interested (directly or
indirectly) in any Interested Person Transaction, he/she will abstain from reviewing that
particular transaction to ensure that the Interested Person Transaction will be carried out on
normal commercial terms and not be prejudicial to the interests of the Company and its
minority Shareholders. Approval of that transaction will accordingly be undertaken by the
remaining members of the Audit Committee.

Further Compliance
The Board will ensure compliance with all disclosure, approval and other requirements relating

to Interested Person Transactions, including those prescribed by applicable laws and
regulations, the Listing Manual and accounting standards.

Benefits to the EAR Group

The renewal of the Shareholders' Mandate on an annual basis would eliminate the need to
convene separate general meetings from time to time to seek Shareholders’ approval as and
when potential Interested Person Transactions or Interested Persons arise, thereby reducing
substantially the administrative time and expenses in convening such meetings, without
compromising the corporate objectives and adversely affecting the business opportunities
available to the EAR Group.

The Shareholders’ Mandate is intended to facilitate transactions in the normal course of
business of the EAR Group, which are transacted from time to time with the Interested Person,
provided that they are carried out at arm's length and on the normal commercial terms and are
not prejudicial to Shareholders.

The Company will announce the aggregate value of transactions conducted with the
Interested Person pursuant to the Shareholders’ Mandate for the half-yearly financial periods
which the Company is required to report on pursuant to the Listing Manual and within the time
required for the announcement of such report.

Disclosure will also be made in the annual reports of the Company of the aggregate value of
Interested Person Transactions conducted pursuant to the Shareholders’ Mandate during the
financial year in which a shareholders’ mandate is in force.



Proxy Form

GREEN BUILD TECHNOLOGY LIMITED 2
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)
(Company Registration No. 200401338W) 3.

IMPORTANT:
1.

This Annual Report is also forwarded to investors who
have used their CPF monies to buy shares in the
Company at the request of their CPF Approved
Nominees, and Is sent solely for thelrinformatien only.
This Proxy Fom is therefore, not valid for use by CPF

and shal be ineffactive for all intents and

Relevant intermediaries (as defined in Section 181 of
the Companies Act, Cap. 50) may appoint more than
two proxies

IiWe (Name)
of (Address)
being a member/members of Green Build Technology Limited (the "Company”) herehy appoint
Name Address NRIC/ Proportion of my/our
Passport No. Shareholding
No. of %
shares
and/or (delete as appropriate)
Name Address NRIC/ Proportion of mylour
Passport No. Shareholding
No. of Y%
shares

failing which, the Chairman of the Meeting, as my/our proxy/proxies to attend and vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Annual
General Meeting of the Company, to be held at Tanglin Room 1 in RELC International Hotel, 30 Orange Grove Road Singapore
258352 on 29 April 2016 at 10.00 a.m., and at any adjournment thereof. I/\We direct my/our proxy/proxies to vote for or against
the Resolutions to be proposed at the Meeting as indicated hereunder. If no specific direction as to voting is given, the
proxy/proxies will vote or abstain from voting at his/their discretion, as he/they will on any other matter arising at the Meeting.

(If you wish to exercise all your votes "For” or "Against’, please indicate your vote "For” or "Against” with “X" within the box
provided. Alternatively, please indicate the number of votes as appropriate.)

No. |Resolutions Relating To:

l For l Against

Ordinary Business

1. |Adoption of Audited Accounts for the financial year ended 31

December 2015 together with the Directors’' Statement and the
Auditors' Report of the Company

2. |Approval of Directors Fees for the financial year ending 31
December 2016

3. |Re-election of Ms Wu Xueying

4. |Re-election of Dr Yao Fengge

5. |Re-appointment of Mr Li Mingyang

6. |Re-appointment of Messrs Ernst & Young LLP as Auditors

Special Business

7. |Authority to allot and issue new shares

8. |Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate for Interested Person
Transactions

Dated this day of 2016.

Total number of Shares held

Signature of Member(s) or Common Seal
Important: Please read notes overleal



MNotes:

1.

Please insert the total number of shares held by you. If you have Shares entered against your
name in the Depository Register (as defined in Section 815F of the Securities and Futures Act,
Cap. 289}, you should insert that number of Shares. If you have Shares registered in your name
in the Register of Members, you should insert that number of Shares. If you have Shares
registered in your name in the Depository Register and Shares registered in your name in the
Register of Members, you should insert the aggregate number of Shares entered against your
name in the Depository Register and registered in your name in the Register of Members. If no
number is inserted, the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies shall be deemed to relate to all
the Shares held by you.

A member who is not a relevant intermediary (as defined in the Companies Act, Cap. 50) is
entitled to appoint not more than two proxies to attend, speak and vote on hisfher behalf at the
AGM. Where a member appoints more than one proxy, he/she shall specify the proportion of
his/her shares to be represented by each such proxy, failing which the nomination shall be
deemed to be alternative.

A member who is a relevant intermediary (as defined in the Companies Act, Cap. 50) is entitled
to appoint more than two proxies to attend, speak and vote at the Annual General Meeting, but
each proxy must be appointed to exercise the rights attached to a different share or shares held
by such member. Where such member’s form of proxy appoints more than two proxies, the
number and class of shares in relation to which each proxy has been appointed shall be specified
in the form of proxy.

A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be deposited at the Company’s registered
office at 9 Temasek Boulevard Suntec City Tower 2 #09-01, Singapore 038989 not less than 48
hours before the time of the Annual General Meeting.

The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be under the hand of the appointor or of
his/her attorney duly authorised in writing. Where the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies is
executed by a corporation, it must be executed either under its common seal or under the hand
of its attorney or a duly authorised officer.

Where an instrument appointing a proxy is signed on behalf of the appointor by an attorney, the
letter of power of attorney or a duly certified copy thereof must (failing previous registration with
the Company) be lodged with the instrument of proxy; failing which the instrument may be treated
as invalid.

The Company shall be entitled to reject a Proxy Form which is incomplete, improperly completed,
illegible or where the true intentions of the appointor are not ascertainable from the instructions
of the appointor specified on the Proxy Form. In addition, in the case of shares entered in the
Depository Register, the Company may reject a Proxy Form if the member, being the appointor,
is not shown to have Shares entered against his name in the Depository Register as at 72 hours
before the time appointed for holding the Meeting, as certified by The Central Depository (Pte)
Limited to the Company.

Personal Data Protection:

By attending the Annual General Meeting and/or any adjournment thereof or submitting an instrument
appointing a proxy(ies) and/or representative(s), the member accepts and agrees to the personal
data privacy terms set out in the Notice of Annual General Meeting.



